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A. PRESENTATIONS AND QUESTIONS

1. Facilities Projects Update – Rob Lumb

B. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

C. ITEMS FOR RECOMMENDATION

1. 2022/23 Financial Statements

a) Staff Recommendation:
The Committee recommends and I, Trustee Elder move,
That the Board approve the internal restriction of accumulated operating surplus as presented
in note 13 in the 2022/23 financial statements.

b) Staff Recommendation:
The Committee recommends and I, Trustee Elder move,
That the Board approve transfer of $116,820 from accumulated operating surplus to local
capital, as presented in schedule 1 in the 2022/23 financial statements.

c) Staff Recommendation:
The Committee recommends and I, Trustee Elder move,
That the Board approve the 2022/23 Financial Statements.



FINANCE, FACILITIES & TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE 
Agenda – September 12, 2023 
 
 
 
2. Feeding Futures Funding Allocation 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Committee recommends and I, Trustee Elder move, 
That the proposed allocation of Feeding Futures funding be approved. 

 
 
3. Jordan’s Principle Funding Agreement 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Committee recommends and I, Trustee Elder move, 
That the Board approve the following resolutions by motion at the September 20, 2023 Regular 
Board meeting: 

  
Resolution 1 (see attachment 1): 

 
 That the Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich) approve Jason Reid, Secretary-

Treasurer, to sign the Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) Master Funding Agreement and 
amendments on behalf of School District No. 63 (Saanich) for the Fiscal Year 2024-2026. 

  
Resolution 2 (see attachment 2) 

  
That the Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich) approve the allocation and direct 
deposit of funding from Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) to the School District No. 63 
(Saanich) at 2125 Keating Cross Road, Saanichton, BC V8M 2A5, through banking services at:      

 
Coast Capital Savings 
201-7860 Wallace Drive 
Saanichton, BC  V8M 2H8 
 
Branch No.: 18920 
Institution No.: 809 
Account Number 21000115675  
 
 

4. SEŚIŚEJ Childcare Centre License Agreement 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Committee recommends and I, Trustee Elder move, 
That the Board approve entering into the proposed license agreement with Beacon Community 
Services for the operation of the ŚEŚIŚEJ Childcare Centre. 
 

 
D. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 
1. Phone Systems Implementation Update – oral report 
2. Saanich Education Accessibility Team (SEAT) – oral report 
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E. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 Long Range Financial Plan (Oct) 
 Financial Enrolment & Funding (Oct) 
 Energy Plan Presentation (Oct) 
 

 
 
 



FACILITIES PROJECTS UPDATE

Rob Lumb, Director of Facilities
Presentation to Finance, Facilities and Technology Committee

September 12, 2023



• CAPITAL PROJECTS

Electric busing
2 Buses on route with delivery within 

weeks 

1 other bus on order scheduled to be 
delivered next summer

Charging system delayed due to supply 
chain issues. Items ordered 8 – 9 months 
ago have not yet been received



• CAPITAL PROJECTS

Deep Cove Heating Plant replacement Phase 2

Phase 1 completed last year, phase 2 this summer

Total Budget 2.1 Million

Major reduction in GHG in alignment with our ESP 90% 
of GHG’s from school will be eliminated



• CAPITAL PROJECTS

Roofing Upgrades

Parkland Secondary 
- $500k Complete

SEŚIŚEJ Childcare 
Centre $3.6 million dollar 
budget

After 6 years of 
planning, project will 
be completed this fall



• CAPITAL PROJECTS

Parkland Track



• CAPITAL PROJECTS

Security Upgrades

Moving to Kan Tech system with 
modernized system

New 2 authentication key pads FOB + 
Code

New FOBS

First School to be done will be ROMS 
on Sept 29th.

Facilities staff will be reaching out very 
soon



• CAPITAL PROJECTS

Stelly’s Cultural Room

To be completed with in-house staff

Beaver Lake septic system

Completed

Cordova Bay Heat pump replacement

Engineering and ordering of unit this year, 
install next year



• WORK ORDER UPDATE

Work orders - Completion

From 2022 04 15 – 2023 04 15

4297 Work orders submitted

3950 Work orders completed

347 Open work orders – 92% Completion rate



• THANK YOU

Thanks to all the crews who make these projects possible



 
 
 

 
 
To:   Finance, Facilities & Technology Committee Prepared By:  Jason Rei 

  Secretary Treasurer 
 
Subject:  2022/23 Financial Statements Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
 
Purpose 

The purpose of this briefing note is to: 
 
1) Provide information relevant for the committee’s review and the Board’s approval of the 

2022/23 financial statements including fund transfers to local capital and internal restriction 
of accumulated operating surplus;  

2) Advise on the next steps in the adoption of the 2023/24 Amended Budget; and, 
3) Advise on next steps for 2024/25 Budget Planning. 

 
Status of Financial Audit 
 
The audit of the 2022/23 Financial Statements is substantially complete and the Auditor 
General’s Office reports that they expect to issue the audit opinion following approval of the 
financial statements by the Board of Education. The audit opinion will be qualified only in 
relation to the contributions revenue accounting policies the school district is required to follow 
by government regulation. 
 
2022/23 Financial Statements 
 
As reported in the consolidated statement of operations (statement 2), for the year ended 
June 30, 2023, the district’s expenses exceeded its revenue resulting in an annual deficit of 
$346,161 (2022 result was an annual deficit of $3,498,631). This was comprised of the 
combined financial results of the operating fund and the capital fund as follows: 
 

Annual Surplus (Deficit) June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
Operating Fund (335,514) (2,921,751) 
Capital Fund (10,647) (576,880) 
Combined (346,161) (3,498,631) 

 
In the operating fund, the annual deficit of $335,514 resulted in accumulated operating surplus 
decreasing from $3,994,957 at the beginning of the year to $3,659,443 as at June 30, 2023. 
Overall, this is consistent with forecasted results reported at the end of May 2023.  Note that this 
operating deficit includes $0.5 million in one-time expenditures from allocation of contingency 
reserve to fund the replacement of district phone systems (i.e. without these expenditures the 
district would have experienced a small operating surplus). 



 
 
 

A Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis (“FSD&A”) has been prepared to supplement 
the financial statements by providing additional information and analysis so readers can more 
fully understand the school district’s 2022/23 financial performance.  
 
The FSD&A is included in the committee package and should be reviewed in conjunction with 
the committee’s review of the financial statements. The FSD&A will be published on the school 
district’s website along with the audited financial statements, once the financial statements are 
approved by the Board of Education. 
 
Fund Transfer to Local Capital 
 
Board Policy 19 (Accumulated Operating Surplus) addresses the use of accumulated surplus and 
the process for fund transfers from the operating fund. 
 
“Transfers of operating surplus to local capital are approved by Board motion and are made 
only for specific initiatives that either have a clear linkage to boards’ strategic goals, address 
required future capital asset investment, or that meet other specified needs of the school 
district.” [excerpt from Policy 19] 
 
Transfers from the operating fund to local capital represent funds designated for the future 
purchase of capital assets. In Saanich, these transfers in 2022/23 relate solely to allocation of a 
portion of lease revenues designated for future renewal of leased space. The practice of 
allocating a designated portion of annual lease revenues to local capital was a historical Board 
decision to ensure childcare portables and other leased exclusive use space can be renewed and 
sustained long term. For the year-ended June 30, 2023, the amount of this transfer is $116,820. 
This transfer is presented in schedules 1, 2, and 4 following the notes the financial statements. 
 
Internal Restriction of Accumulated Operating Surplus 
 
“Accumulated operating surplus may be appropriated (internally restricted) by Board motion 
for the following purposes: 

•  Contingency Reserve; 

•  Multi-year Funding of Projects and Programs; and  

•  Strategic or Operational Priorities.” [excerpt from Policy 19] 

 
Policy 19 requires that the contingency reserve be sufficient to reduce financial risk (and its 
impact on program stability) to an appropriate level, and when the contingency reserve is 
reduced below what is determined to be appropriate, “the Board will adopt strategies for 
replenishing the Contingency Reserve within an appropriate time frame.” 
 
 
 

https://saanichschools.ca/saanich-schools/policies-procedures/board-policy-handbook/policy-19


 
 
 

 
The 2022/23 Amended Budget was balanced without appropriation of accumulated surplus to 
fund continuing expenditures, and with contingency reserve of $2,998,441.  After removing the 
impact of a one-time expenditure of $500,000 to replace phone systems, the actual result in 
comparison to budget was a small surplus of less than $0.2 million, or less than 0.2% of 
budgeted expenditures.  This is a concerning result indicating the structural budget balance in 
2022/23 was tenuous.  Increasing budget pressure in 2022/23 was attributable to continued 
escalation of sick and emergency leave usage and inflationary cost pressures for equipment, 
services, and supplies. 
 
Balancing the 2023/24 Budget required appropriation of accumulated surplus of $1,384,307 to 
fund continuing inflationary cost pressures1.  This included $600,000 to fund the increased leave 
costs experienced in 2022/23 (and expected to continue), and the remaining appropriation was 
necessary to fund almost $800,000 in additional inflationary costs budgeted in 2023/24 relating 
to benefit plan premiums, services, equipment and supplies. The contingency reserve has also 
decreased from $2,998,441 in 2022/23 to $1,499,507 in 2023/24.  
 
Appropriation of accumulated surplus to fund continuing expenditures is sustainable only when 
sufficient conservatism is embedded in the budget such that the appropriation balances off with 
average budget underspend and overall accumulated operating surplus is stable or grows. 
However, the actual results for 2022/23 indicate that funding almost $800,000 of additional 
inflationary costs in 2023/24 with accumulated surplus is unlikely to be sustainable. 
Compounding this financial risk is the likelihood of further unfunded inflationary costs in 
2024/25 and a reduced contingency reserve balance (at a time when the risk factors would 
instead justify a higher reserve balance). 
 
The Board will need to adopt strategies to replenish the contingency reserve and improve 
budgetary balance by reducing dependence on accumulated surplus to fund continuing 
expenditures. This is discussed further below in relation to next steps for adopting the 2023/24 
Amended Budget and 2024/25 Budget Planning. 

 
Per Policy 19, surplus available for multi-year funding of projects and programs is the surplus 
available after first allocating what is necessary to the contingency reserve. Although available 
surplus is not sufficient to fund an appropriate contingency reserve, I do recommend that carry-
forwards are approved (in more limited circumstances) to avoid abrupt program impacts.  It will 
then be necessary to develop a strategy in future budgets (including the 2023/24 Amended 
Budget) to replenish the contingency reserve and reduce reliance on accumulated surplus to fund 
continuing expenditures. 
 

                                                 
1 The 2023/24 Preliminary Budget was balanced with $1,682,754 in appropriation of accumulated surplus 
for continuing expenditures. Subsequent to adoption of the budget, funding and policy direction for exempt 
compensation was confirmed, and the proposed appropriation of accumulated surplus was reduced to 
$1,384,307 reflecting the funding announced and actual salary inflation cost versus budget. 



 
 
 

Multi-year funding of projects and programs requires the allocation of prior year revenues to 
fund future expenditures and is achieved through budgetary appropriation of accumulated 
operating surplus.  This appropriation of June 30, 2023 accumulated operating surplus 
effectively includes these balances as a source of revenue (for budgetary purposes) in the 
2023/24 Amended Budget.  Multi-year funding of projects and programs has historically applied 
in the following circumstances: 
 
• School surplus balances – schools historically carry-forward unspent operating budget as 

they are expected to fund equipment replacement and other initiatives that span more than 
one fiscal year. These carry-forwards have historically been limited to 40% of operating 
budget2, except in unusual circumstances. 

• Continuing project – budget allocated to a discrete project in-progress that continues 
beyond the end of the fiscal year. This includes equipment purchased with 2022/23 
budget, which does not arrive until after fiscal year-end. 

• Targeted funding – funding externally restricted for a specific purpose and not fully spent 
by the end of the year. 

• Timing differences – funding is received but the related expenditures occur in the 
following fiscal year. For example, most of the instructional services balance occurs 
because for certain programs funding and some of the related costs occur in different fiscal 
years (ex. Dual credit program, Hairstylist program, etc).  

Due to the significant decline in available accumulated surplus, proposed carry-forward balances 
are further restricted as follows: 
 
• Reduce limit on school carry-forwards by 50% (from 40% of budget to 20% of budget). 

Greater surplus only permitted where a school had made a purchase before year-end that 
was not received/invoiced before year-end, and only to the extent that purchase exceeded 
the limit of 20% of budget.  

• Carry-forwards for continuing projects only allowed for irreversible commitments – 
targeted funding, purchase that has already been made (but not invoiced before year-end) 
or a public commitment related to an educational program priority (ex. specific strategic 
plan initiative). 

 
Accumulated operating surplus and proposed appropriations of accumulated operating surplus as 
at June 30, 2023 are presented in the left column in the table below.  These proposed 
appropriations are presented in Note 13 of the financial statements, pending approval by the 
Board. 

                                                 
2 Carry-forwards have historically been limited to 10% of operating budget, except in unusual 
circumstances. Effective in 2021/22, budgets for school support staff were centralized to simplify the 
budgeting process for schools. Following this change (which effectively reduced budgets under school 
control), an equivalent limit on carryforward balances has been determined to be 40%. 



 
 
 

 
 2022/23 

Financial 
Statements 

2022/23 
Amended 

Budget 

2021/22 Financial 
Statements 

School Activities (multi-year 
funding) 

252,928 403,932 403,932 

District Activities (multi-year 
funding) 

522,701 592,584 592,584 

Appropriated for Budget in 
Following Year 

1,384,307 
 

- 2,530,968 

Total Internally Restricted 2,159,936 996,516 3,527,484 
Contingency Reserve 
(Unappropriated Surplus) 

1,499,507 2,998,441 467,473 

Total Accumulated Surplus 3,659,443 3,994,957 3,994,957 
 

The right column in the above table shows how accumulated surplus was restricted in the prior 
year (2021/22) financial statements3, and the middle column shows how this prior year 
accumulated surplus was then allocated in the 2022/23 amended budget adopted by the Board in 
February 2023. 
 
Carry-forward balances for school and district activities are presented in more detail in 
Appendix 1. 
 
Adoption of the 2023/24 Amended Budget – Next Steps 
 
Each year the Board of Education approves an Amended Annual Budget (before the end of 
February) reflecting changes that result from: 
 

• analysis of prior year audited results and confirmation of available accumulated 
operating surplus; 

• confirmation of fall enrolment and resulting funding and staffing costs; and 
• other circumstances that have arisen subsequent to the adoption of the preliminary 

budget. 
 
In October, I will provide updates on enrolment, funding, and the related impact on budgetary 
balance for the 2023/24 Amended Budget. 
 
Given the increased budgetary risk as outlined in this briefing note, I recommend that any 
incremental funding from enrolment growth be allocated to the extent possible to increase the 

                                                 
3 The reduction in the appropriation of accumulated surplus for budget and the corresponding increase to the 
contingency reserve in the 2022/23 amended budget resulted from increased funding for teacher positions through the 
Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF), which effectively transferred expenditure budget from the operating fund to the 
special purpose fund.  



 
 
 

contingency reserve and reduce reliance on accumulated surplus to fund continuing 
expenditures. 
 
This approach is consistent with Board direction from the May 3, 2023 Special Budget Board 
meeting which included that the 2023/24 budget reflect as a principle “that during 2023/24 any 
additional funding, including from enrolment growth relative to forecast, be applied to reduce 
budget pressure to the extent possible”. 
 
2024/25 Budget Planning Next Steps 
 
At the May 3, 2023 Special Budget Board meeting the following motion was carried: 
 
“That the district conduct a review of programs, early in 2023/24, considering where budget 
reductions are feasible to inform cost reduction measures to be implemented in future budgets 
as required, and that the Board advocate at all levels for funding of inflationary and other 
unfunded cost pressures.” 
 
Prior to the budget consultation process commencing, staff will complete a review of programs 
considering where budget savings are feasible. This review will include the following: 
 
- comparative program budget analysis (program cost per student FTE) 
- program and school budget allocation model review (staffing and service and supplies) 
- leave cost analysis (cost drivers and opportunities) 
- opportunities to generate revenues 

 
At the October FF&T meeting the Long-Range Financial Plan will be presented for review and 
approval.  This plan will forecast fiscal balance over the next 3 years and will help inform 
budget planning for 2024/25. 
 

  



 
 
 

Board Approval of 2022/23 Financial Statements 
 

  Staff Recommendations: 
  
 That the Board approve the internal restriction of accumulated operating surplus as presented in 

note 13 in the 2022/23 financial statements. 
 
 That the Board approve transfer of $116,820 from accumulated operating surplus to local capital, 

as presented in schedule 1 in the 2022/23 financial statements. 
 

That the Board approve the 2022/23 Financial Statements. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Jason Reid 
Secretary-Treasurer 
 
JR/klg 
 
Attachments:   Appendix 1: District and School Surplus Balances 
  



Appendix 1: District and School Surplus Balances
As at June 30, 2023

June 2023 June 2022 Change
School Activities (multi-year funding) 252,928               403,932       (151,004)     
District Activities (multi-year funding) 522,701               592,584       (69,883)       
Appropriated for Budget in following year 1,384,307            2,530,968    (1,146,661)  
Total Internally Restricted 2,159,936            3,527,484    (1,367,548)  
Contingency Reserve (Unappropriated Surplus) 1,499,507            467,473       1,032,034   
Total Accumulated Surplus 3,659,443            3,994,957    (335,514)     

Internally Restricted for District Activities
June 2023 June 2022

Budget Budget Change
CFWD CFWD

Information Technology - IT Infrastructure -                       5,531           (5,531)         
Finance - projects -                       35,000         (35,000)       
Instructional Services - programs 83,560                 153,724       (70,164)       
Learning and Innovation - grants/programs 31,934                 67,164         (35,230)       
Indigenous Education - grants/programs 258,966               225,494       33,472        
Diversity and Inclusion - grants/programs 122,537               64,546         57,991        
Early Learning Programs -                       12,922         (12,922)       
Saanich Rec Joint Use Funds - ROMS 19,524                 23,203         
Superintendent - projects 1,780                   5,000           (3,220)         
H&S - OHS projects 4,400                   -               4,400          
Total District Activities (multi-year funding) 522,701               592,584       (66,204)       

Internally Restricted for School Activities BUDGET June 2023 % Surplus June 2022
(excluding Budget Relative to Budget
staffing and SPF) CFWD Budget CFWD

Brentwood Elementary 80,746                 16,149         20.0% 18,748       
Cordova Bay Elementary 79,542                 15,908         20.0% 20,318       
Deep Cove Elementary 64,878                 -               0.0% 11,462       
Keating Elementary 88,767                 -               0.0% 4,308         
Lochside Elementary 83,719                 16,744         20.0% 1,310         
Prospect Lake Elementary 47,899                 -               0.0% (2,610)        
Kelset Elementary 85,015                 8,768           10.3% 20,666       
Sidney Elementary 89,472                 17,877         20.0% 19,785       
Stelly's Secondary 358,680               71,736         20.0% 63,796       
Claremont Secondary 370,850               2,388           0.6% (11,928)      
Parkland Secondary 179,477               14,740         8.2% 44,005       
North Saanich Middle 98,149                 12,369         12.6% 20,000       
Royal Oak Middle 111,215               (983)             -0.9% 19,035       
Bayside Middle 134,684               455              0.3% 44,000       
ILC and Continuing Education 229,689               45,938         20.0% 47,905       
SIDES 551,830               30,839         5.6% 59,157       
Children's Development Centre 96,584                 -               0.0% 23,977       
School Activities (multi-year funding) 2,751,196            252,928       403,934     
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The following is a discussion and analysis of the Saanich School District’s financial performance 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. This report is a summary of the district’s financial 
activities based on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. The results of the current year 
are discussed in comparison with the prior year and budget. This report should be read in 
conjunction with the district’s financial statements. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

The Saanich School District serves about 8,000 student FTE in: 14 neighborhood schools (8 
elementary schools, 3 middle schools, and 3 secondary schools); the Children’s Development 
Centre; the South Island Distance Education School (SIDES); the Individual Learning Centre 
(ILC), the Continuing Education program; and the Saanich International Student Program. 

Saanich Schools Strategic Plan 2022-2027 guides the Board of Education and its employees and 
partners in delivering educational programs. The Strategic Plan is organized around the 
following four goals: 

 Literacy; 
 Indigenous Learner Success; 
 Mental Health and Wellness; and 
 Global Citizenship. 

Under the School Act and Policy 2 (Role of the Board), the Board is responsible for the 
improvement of student achievement, and the strategic plan is the means to achieving this 
objective. 
 
UNDERSTANDING SCHOOL DISTRICT FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Annual surplus and accumulated surplus1 are key financial statement performance indicators; 
however, interpreting the meaning of these figures in BC school districts is complicated by the 
use of fund accounting and deferral accounting. The use of fund accounting means the financial 
statements of school districts are a consolidation of three separate funds (operating, special 
purpose and capital), and each of these funds differs with respect to the methods of accounting 
used and the legislative and other constraints on budgeting and financial results. This means 
financial performance can only be fully understood by reviewing each fund separately. Financial 
performance for each fund is reported in the supplementary schedules that follow the notes to the 
financial statements. 

 
1 Annual surplus is the extent to which annual revenues exceed expenses. If annual expenses exceed revenues the 
result is referred to as an annual deficit. An accumulated surplus position is the extent to which revenues from all 
previous years have exceeded expenses from all previous years. An accumulated deficit position occurs when 
expenses from all previous years exceed revenues from all previous years. When an accumulated deficit occurs, it 
means future revenues are needed to pay for past expenditures. 
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Operating Fund 
 
2023 Revenues: 
$89.5 million 
 

Annual program revenues and expenditures are reported within the 
operating fund and special purpose fund (see below). Annual surplus 
and accumulated surplus within the operating fund are important 
indicators of financial performance and financial health for school 
districts. This is because school districts are not permitted to budget for 
or incur an accumulated deficit position. This means when a school 
district has accumulated operating surplus available it can be used to 
budget for future expenditures or to reduce financial risk associated with 
unforeseen circumstances. 
 

Special Purpose 
Fund 
 
2023 Revenues: 
$17.0 million 

The special purpose fund includes targeted grants and school generated 
revenues that are restricted for a specific purpose. Annual and 
accumulated surplus is always zero because revenues are recognized 
only as related expenditures occur (deferral method of accounting). If 
expenditures for a program within the special purpose fund exceed 
available revenues, the resulting deficit is transferred to the operating 
fund, reducing accumulated operating surplus. 
 

Capital Fund 
 
2023 Capital 
Funding Received: 
$4.1 million 
 
2023 Capital 
Assets Purchased: 
$6.9 million 

The capital fund reports investment in and financing activities related to 
capital assets. Capital contributions (funding) from the Province are 
accounted for using the deferral method of accounting, whereby 
recognition of revenue is spread out over the life of the related capital 
assets to match with amortization expense, which reflects the use of the 
asset over its life. This means capital fund revenues are not a reflection 
of funding actually received in a given year, and annual surplus (deficit) 
in the capital fund is not a meaningful indicator of annual financial 
performance. 
 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

As reported in the consolidated statement of operations (statement 2), for the year ended June 30, 
2023 the district’s expenses exceeded its revenue resulting in an annual deficit of $346,161 
(2022 result was an annual deficit of $3,498,631). This was comprised of the combined financial 
results of the operating fund and the capital fund as follows: 

Annual Surplus (Deficit) June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
Operating Fund (335,514) (2,921,751) 
Capital Fund (10,647) (576,880) 
Combined (346,161) (3,498,631) 

 
In the operating fund, the annual deficit of $335,514 resulted in accumulated operating surplus 
decreasing from $3,994,957 at the beginning of the year to $3,659,443 as at June 30, 2023. 
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Overall, this is consistent with the forecasted results reported at the end of May 2023. Note that 
this operating deficit reflects $0.5 million in one-time expenditures from the allocation of 
contingency reserve to fund the replacement of district phone systems (i.e. without these 
expenditures the district would have experienced a small operating surplus). 
 
Exhibit 1: Closing Accumulated Surplus ($ million) by Fiscal Year 

 
 

 
Provincial operating grants, which comprise approximately 87% of total operating fund 
revenues, are determined largely based on student enrolment. In BC, funding increases or 
decreases with enrolment to a greater degree than program costs vary with enrolment. This 
means that when enrolment declines financial pressure results, and when enrolment grows there 
is generally increased financial flexibility. As shown in exhibits 1 and 2, there is a correlation 
between periods of enrolment decline and depletion of accumulated surplus, which is a key 
indicator of financial pressure. 

In 2020/21 the district experienced net enrolment growth attributable to the pandemic. This 
consisted of significant enrolment growth at SIDES (online learning) driven mostly by students 
enrolling from outside the school district, partially offset by pandemic related enrolment declines 
in neighbourhood schools. In 2021/22 and 2022/23, enrolment declined overall as enrolment in 
SIDES and neighbourhood schools have trended closer to “pre-pandemic” levels. Over the next 
decade, the district is forecasting modest enrolment growth averaging about 1% per year. 
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Exhibit 2: Funded FTE Enrolment by Fiscal Year 

 

Capital Investment 

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the district invested $6.9 million in capital additions that 
were funded by: Provincial capital funding ($5.2 million), the operating fund ($1.6 million), and 
the other capital contributions ($0.1 million). Capital additions during the year included the 
following projects:  

Project  Total 
Project 
Budget 

Invested 
in 

2022/23 

Completion 
Date 

ŚEŚIŚEJ Childcare Centre $3.6m $2.0m Fall 2023 
Computer Hardware Upgrades $1.2m $1.2m Ongoing 
Deep Cove Heating System Upgrade $2.1m $1.0m Fall 2023 
Prospect Lake Parking Lot Expansion $0.6m $0.6m Spring 2023 
Parkland Roof Upgrades $1.0m $0.5m Summer 2023 
Parkland Track $0.6m $0.4m Summer 2023 
Brentwood Heating System Upgrade $0.3m $0.3m Fall 2023 
Brentwood Playground Equipment $0.2m $0.2m Spring 2023 
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2022/23 Significant Financial Events 

 Enrolment and Funding – While 2022/23 on-line learning enrolment remained above 
“pre-pandemic” levels, it has continued to decrease relative to the 2020/21 school year 
(when enrolment peaked during the pandemic) as many students return to traditional in-
person instruction. As most on-line learning students enroll from outside of the school 
district, this has resulted in overall enrolment decline during the past two fiscal years as 
shown in Exhibit 2.  
 

 International Program Enrolment and Revenues – The reduced availability of 
homestay families continues to constrain recovery of international program enrolment 
below “pre-pandemic” levels (i.e. 320 to 330 FTE). Enrolment during the 2022/23 school 
year was 256 FTE, and the preliminary budget for 2023/24 reflects forecasted enrolment 
of 250 FTE. Recruitment of homestay families is a program focus to support the continued 
recovery of international program enrolment and revenues.  
 

 Inflationary Cost Pressures – In 2022/23 the school district experienced growing budget 
pressures including continued escalation of sick and emergency leave usage and 
inflationary cost pressures for equipment, services, and supplies. These inflationary costs 
are putting financial pressure on future budgets and are reducing the purchasing power of 
existing school and program budgets. The impact on the district technology plan 
(RefreshED) is particularly concerning as implementation of the plan is no longer possible 
without either additional funding or a significant reduction in the planned future 
deployment of technology. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

In this section, actual results are compared to the prior year and budget (where applicable) in 
more detail. For the statement of operations, the analysis is performed separately for each of the 
three funds. 

Statement of Financial Position (All Funds) 

The table below includes explanations for significant variances in the statement of financial 
position (statement 1) relative to the prior year. 

 2023 2022 Analysis of Variance 

Construction 
Security Deposit 

587,929 87,100 In 2023, the district was required to provide a 
security deposit to District of Central Saanich 
for the value of required municipal upgrades 
associated with the construction of the 
ŚEŚIŚEJ Childcare Centre. The prior year 
balance was a similar security deposit with 
the District of Saanich for a different project. 

Accounts 
Payable and 
Accrued 
Liabilities - 
Other 

10,212,568 9,142,040 This increase is primarily due to an increase 
in salaries and benefits payable, attributable 
to salary/wage increases and the timing of 
pay periods relative to year-end. 

Unearned 
Revenue 

5,764,611 5,055,707 Increased by $0.7 million due to increased 
international program tuition rates and 
enrolment in 2023/24 relative to 2022/23. 

Deferred Capital 
Revenue 

118,349,608 119,585,324 Decreased by $1.2 million due amortization 
of deferred capital revenue ($5.3m), offset by 
capital revenue received ($4.1m). 

Tangible Capital 
Assets 

144,083,042 144,363,384 Decreased by $0.3 million due amortization 
of capital assets ($7.2m), offset by capital 
investment ($6.9m). 
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Statement of Operations by Fund – Operating Fund 

 Amended 
Budget 2022/23  

Actual 
2022/23 

Actual 
2021/22 

Actual 
2020/21 

     
Revenues2 88,615,703 89,530,761 84,698,127 81,844,847 
Expenses and fund transfers 89,612,219 89,866,275 87,619,878 81,606,207 
Annual Operating Surplus 
(Deficit) 

(996,516) (335,514) (2,921,751) 238,630 

     
Opening Accumulated Surplus  3,994,957 6,916,708 6,678,078 
Closing Accumulated Surplus  3,659,443 3,994,957 6,916,708 

  

The 2022/23 Amended Budget included as a source of funding appropriation of $996,516 for 
district and school program carry-forwards, resulting in a budgeted deficit in the same amount. 

Detailed information on the operating fund is presented in schedules 2 to 2C following the notes 
to the financial statements. Revenues, expenditures and accumulated operating surplus are 
analysed in greater detail in the next section. 

  

 
2 The Ministry of Education and Childcare directed the school district to budget an estimate of the funding for collective 
agreement settlement costs as appropriation of accumulated surplus in the 2022/23 Amended Budget, as confirmation of 
funding was pending at the time. This estimate of $3,177,721 is presented instead as grant revenues in this document to 
facilitate meaningful comparison with how the grants were reported in the 2022/23 financial statements. 
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Operating Fund Revenues 

A high level summary of operating fund revenues is presented below and explanations of 
significant variances follows. A more detailed presentation of operating revenues is presented in 
schedule 2A following the notes to the financial statements. 

 Amended 
Budget 2022/23 

Actual 
2022/23 

Amended 
Budget 2021/22 

Actual 
2021/22 

Grant Revenue 77,419,501 77,696,447 74,240,072 74,828,557 
Tuition Revenue 
(International 
Program) 

4,048,515 4,193,697 3,507,675 3,708,763 

Other Revenue 6,277,687 6,442,309 5,639,840 5,574,297 
Rentals and Leases 390,000 415,440 390,000 380,542 
Investment Income 480,000 782,868 200,000 205,968 
     
Total Revenues 88,615,703 89,530,761 83,977,587 84,698,127 

 

Grant Revenues:   

Budgeted grant revenues in 2022/23 increased by $3.2 million relative to the 2021/22 budget due 
primarily to additional budgeted grant revenues ($3.2 million) for collective agreement 
settlement costs. While there was also decline in 22/23 enrolment based funding, this was offset 
by increased supplemental funding for enrolment decline and growth in funding for unique 
needs. 

Actual 2022/23 grant revenues exceeded 2022/23 budget by $0.3 million due to more enrolment 
being funded by the ministry and less by First Nations (this is a reclassification of funding that 
results in a corresponding negative variance in other revenues – see below). 

Tuition Revenues: 

Budgeted tuition revenues in 2022/23 increased by $0.5 million relative to the 2021/22 budget 
reflecting increased tuition fee rates and increase budgeted enrolment (from 225 FTE to 250 
FTE).   

Actual 2022/23 grant revenues exceeded 2022/23 budget $0.15 million as enrolment exceeded 
budget (256 FTE vs budget of 250 FTE).  

Other Revenues: 

Budgeted other revenues in 2022/23 increased by $0.6 million relative to the 2021/22 budget due 
primarily to the international student homestay fees budget increasing by $0.3 million (increased 
enrolment), and a $0.3 million increase to budgeted funding from First Nations. 
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Actual other revenues in 2022/23 exceeded budget by $0.2 million due to higher misc. and 
school generated revenues ($0.5 million higher) partially offset by lower funding from First 
Nations relative to budget ($0.3 million lower).  

Operating Fund Expenses 

Expenses in the financial statements are presented both by object (category of expense) and by 
function (program). Operating fund expenses are presented below using each method with 
explanations of significant variances following. A more detailed presentation of operating 
expenses is presented in schedules 2B and 2C following the notes to the financial statements. 

Analysis of Variances by Object 

Operating Fund 
Expenditure by Object 

Amended 
Budget 2022/23 

Actual 
2022/23 

Amended 
Budget 2021/22 

Actual 
2021/22 

Salaries     
Teachers 33,619,707 34,010,766 34,870,563 35,576,010 
Principals and Vice 
Principals 

4,906,441 4,782,113 4,727,020 4,636,514 

Education Assistants 6,230,650 5,802,868 5,722,047 5,214,769 
Support Staff 8,917,970 8,494,814 9,290,257 8,463,733 
Other Professionals 3,333,828 3,342,948 3,169,536 3,151,514 
Substitutes 3,778,550 4,336,063 2,981,485 3,919,473 

Total Salaries 60,787,146 60,769,572 60,760,908 60,962,013 
Employee Benefits 15,477,935 16,021,019 15,299,160 15,168,799 

Total Salaries and 
Benefits 

76,265,081 76,790,591 76,060,068 76,130,812 

Service and Supplies 
expense 

12,387,138 11,316,999 11,197,393 10,343,995 

Fund transfers 
(schedule 2) 

960,000 1,758,685 1,052,218 1,145,071 

Total Service and 
Supplies and fund 
transfers 

13,347,138 13,075,684 
 

12,249,611 11,489,066 

Total Operating 
Expenditure 

89,612,219 89,866,275 88,309,679 87,619,878 
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Salaries – Teachers 

Budgeted teacher salary expense in 2022/23 was $1.3 million lower than budgeted expense in 
2021/22 due to: 

 Enrolment based staffing reductions - $0.6 million decrease 
 Staffing reductions to balance 22/23 budget - $0.4 million decrease 
 Reallocation of staffing cost to the Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF) - $1.6 

million decrease 
 Wage increases (collective agreement) - $1.3 million increase. 

Actual teacher salary cost in 2022/23 exceeded budget by $0.4 million because average teacher 
cost exceeded budget (increase category changes from more teachers obtaining their masters 
degrees was a contributing factor), and because two teachers were appointed to interim 
administrator positions during the year (their teacher salaries and the teachers backfilling their 
positions were coded to teacher salaries). 

The district is funded for 79.7 teacher full-time equivalent (FTE) positions through the 
Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF) (was 60.7 FTE in 2021/22) for the restoration of class size 
and composition language. The CEF and related costs are reported in the special purpose fund 
and are not reflected in the operating fund figures reported above. 

Salaries – Principals and Vice Principals (PVP) 

Budgeted PVP salary expense in 2022/23 was higher than 2021/22 budgeted expense by $0.2 
million primarily due to inflationary salary increases. 

Actual 2022/23 expense was below budget by $0.1 million primarily because a portion of salary 
for temporary VP assignments was coded to the teacher salary budget. 

Salaries – Education Assistants (EA) 

Budgeted Education Assistant salary expense in 2022/23 was higher than 2021/22 budgeted 
expense by $0.5 million primarily due to inflationary salary increases ($0.25m) and increased 
position budget ($0.25 million). 

In 2022/23 actual expense was below budget by $0.4 million primarily due to hiring lag for 
vacant positions and unpaid leaves. 

Salaries – Support Staff 

Budgeted Support Staff salary expense in 2022/23 was lower than 2021/22 budgeted expense by 
$0.3 million primarily due to a $0.7 million decrease resulting from a change in the financial 
statement presentation of cost recovery of staff cost allocated to capital projects, and partially 
offset by a $0.4 million increase for wage increases.  
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In 2022/23 actual expense was below budget by $0.4 million due primarily to hiring lag for 
vacant positions and unpaid leaves. 

Salaries – Other Professionals 

Budgeted other professional salary expense in 2022/23 increased relative to 2021/22 budgeted 
expense by $0.2 million due to inflationary wage increases. Actual expense in 2022/23 was 
consistent with budget.  

Salaries –Substitutes 

Budgeted substitute salary expense in 2022/23 increased relative to 2021/22 budgeted expense 
by $0.8 million including $0.1 million for inflationary wage increases, and $0.7 million to reflect 
the increased usage of sick and emergency leave experienced in the prior year. In the prior year 
(2021/22) actual substitute salary cost exceeded budget by $0.9 million. 

Actual expense in 2022/23 exceeded budget by $0.6 million, and exceeded prior year expense 
(2021/22) by $0.4 million. This significant negative variance relative to budget and prior year is 
attributable to continued escalation of sick and emergency leave usage. 

Employee Benefits 

Budgeted employee benefits expense in 2022/23 increased relative to 2021/22 budgeted expense 
by $0.2 million due primarily to wage increases, partially offset by reallocation of $0.4 million 
from the operating fund to the special purpose fund relating to the increased funding of teacher 
positions through the Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF). 

Actual expense in 2022/23 exceeded budget by $0.5 million due to increased usage of benefit 
programs (medical, dental, EFAP).  

Total Service and Supplies and Fund Transfers 

For the purpose of this analysis, fund transfers are combined with service and supply expense 
because fund transfers relate primarily to the purchase of capital assets from service and supply 
budgets in the operating fund. 

It is expected that actual service and supply expenditures will be less than budget as most surplus 
carry-forward balances are reflected as service and supply expenditure in the budget and are not 
fully spent. 

Budgeted expense in 2022/23 was $1.1 million higher than budgeted expense in 2021/22. The 
primary reasons were higher homestay costs by $0.3 million (increased enrolment), and because 
supply budget increased by $0.7 million from the change in financial statement presentation of 
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cost recovery of staff cost allocated to capital projects (see budget variance explanation above for 
support staff). 

Actual expense in 2022/23 was below budget by $0.3 million primarily due to the impact of 
unspent budget related to carry-forward balances of $0.8 million, partially offset by additional 
expenditure of $500,000 to replace district phone systems (approved following adoption of the 
amended budget and expensed before year-end). 

Analysis of Variances by Function 

Operating Fund 
Expenditure by 
Function 

Amended 
Budget 

2022/23 

Actual 
2022/23 

Amended 
Budget 

2021/22 

Actual 
2021/22 

     
Instruction 73,700,164 73,776,687 72,844,921 72,922,289 
District 
Administration 

3,526,204 3,413,180 3,371,562 2,973,649 

Operations and 
Maintenance 

9,767,530 9,217,468 9,538,764 9,025,217 

Transportation  1,658,321 1,700,255 1,502,214 1,553,652 
Fund transfer 960,000 1,758,685 1,052,218 1,145,071 
     
Total 89,612,219 89,866,275 88,309,679 87,619,878 

 

Instruction – 2022/23 budgeted expenditures exceed 2021/22 budgeted expenditures by $0.85 
million. This increase was primarily attributable to wage and benefit cost increases ($2.8 million 
increase), offset by increased allocation of costs to the Classroom Enhancement Fund ($2.0 
million decrease). While the number of Teacher positions also decreased (with lower enrolment), 
the budget impact was offset by growth in Education Assistant positions and growth in Substitute 
budget (attributable to continued escalation of sick and emergency leave usage). 

In 2022/23 actual cost exceeded budget by under $0.1 million for a variety of reasons identified 
in the analysis of expenditure variances by object above. 

District Administration – 2022/23 budgeted expenditures exceed 2021/22 budgeted 
expenditures by $0.15 million attributable primarily to salary inflation. In 2022/23 actual costs 
were $0.1 million below budget primarily due to underspend of service and supply budgets. 

Operations and Maintenance and Fund Transfer – 2022/23 budgeted expenditures exceed 
2021/22 budgeted expenditures by $0.2 million attributable primarily to salary inflation ($0.3 
million), partially offset by the reduction of one position.  
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When Operations and Maintenance expense is combined with fund transfers, expenditure was 
$0.2 million above budget; however, actual results includes a $0.5 million expenditure to replace 
district phone systems which was not reflected in the amended budget (approved subsequent to 
budget adoption).  

Transportation – 2022/23 budgeted expenditures exceed 2021/22 budgeted expenditures by 
$0.15 million attributable inflation in fuel, supplies and wages. Actual expense exceeded budget 
by $0.05 million due to supply and fuel cost inflation. 

Accumulated Operating Surplus 

Understanding the components of accumulated operating surplus is necessary for knowing how 
much of the balance relates to multi-year funding of programs (surplus carry-forwards) and how 
much of the balance is available to reduce financial risk associated with unforeseen expenditures 
or to fund additional expenditures in the future. The components of closing accumulated surplus 
are presented in the table below: 

 
 2022/23 

Financial 
Statements 

2022/23 
Amended 

Budget 

2021/22 Financial 
Statements 

School Activities (multi-year 
funding) 

252,928 403,932 403,932 

District Activities (multi-year 
funding) 

522,701 592,584 592,584 

Appropriated for Budget in 
Following Year 

1,384,307 
 

- 2,530,968 

Total Internally Restricted 2,159,936 996,516 3,527,484 
Contingency Reserve 
(Unappropriated Surplus) 

1,499,507 2,998,441 467,473 

Total Accumulated Surplus 3,659,443 3,994,957 3,994,957 
 

The right column in the above table shows how accumulated surplus was restricted in the prior 
year (2021/22) financial statements, and the middle column shows how this prior year 
accumulated surplus was then allocated in the 2022/23 amended budget adopted by the Board in 
February 2022. The reduction in the appropriation of accumulated surplus and corresponding 
increase to the contingency reserve in the 2022/23 amended budget resulted from increased 
funding for teacher positions through the Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF), which 
effectively transferred expenditure budget to the special purpose fund (discussed in next section). 
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During the year ended June 30, 2023 accumulated operating surplus declined from $3,994,957 at 
the beginning of the year to $3,659,443 at the end of the year. The left column shows that 
$1,384,307 of this balance has been allocated to fund continuing expenditures in the 2023/24 
Preliminary Budget, $775,629 is allocated to multi-year funding of district and school programs, 
and $1,499,507 is allocated to contingency reserve. 

Appropriation of $1,384,307 in accumulated operating surplus to balance the 2023/24 budget 
(2022/23 budget appropriation was $0) in the absence of a trend of growing accumulated surplus 
is an indicator that budgetary balance is not sustainable, and measures are likely necessary to 
improve fiscal balance in future budgets. 

Statement of Operations by Fund – Special Purpose Fund 

 Amended Budget 
2022/23 

Actual 2022/23 Amended 
Budget 2021/22 

Actual 2021/22 

     
Provincial 
Grants 

13,322,083 13,344,812 10,495,170 10,717,370 

Other Revenues 2,985,000 3,723,766 1,744,500 2,791,565 
Expenditures (16,307,083) (17,004,997) (12,239,670) (13,508,935) 
Fund transfers   - (63,581) - - 
Annual Surplus 
(Deficit) 

- - - - 

 

2022/23 Budgeted grant revenues in the special purpose fund increased by $2.8 million relative 
to 2021/22 budgeted revenues primarily due to: additional teaching positions funded through 
CEF ($2.0 million), funding for wage inflation ($0.5 million), and a number of smaller factors.  

Actual 2022/23 Provincial Grants were close to budget. Other revenues in 2022/23 exceeded 
budget by $0.7 million due to school-based revenues exceeding budget by $0.5 million, and a 
number of other smaller factors. 
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Statement of Operations by Fund – Capital Fund 

 Amended Budget 
2021/22 

Actual 
2021/22 

Amended Budget 
2021/22 

Actual 
2021/22 

     
Revenues 4,812,120 5,324,743 5,014,611 5,139,040 
Expenses (6,981,468) (7,157,656) (6,718,052) (6,860,991) 
Fund Transfers 
(capital assets 
purchased in other 
funds) 

960,000 1,822,266 1,052,218 1,145,071 

Change in 
Accumulated Surplus 

(1,209,348) (10,647) (651,223) (576,880) 

Prior Period 
Adjustment 

   (12,688,641) 

Opening Accumulated 
Surplus 

 13,709,860  26,975,381 

Closing Accumulated 
Surplus 

 13,699,213  13,709,860 

 

It is expected that revenues and expenses in the capital fund will be predictable and consistent, as 
they reflect the recognition of capital funding (as revenue) and the usage of capital assets over 
their life (as amortization expense). 

The 2022/23 financial statements reflect a prior period adjustment to implement new standards 
relating to asset retirement obligations. This adjustment reduced opening accumulated surplus in 
the capital fund by $12,688,641. A description of this adjustment is found in note 23 of the 
financial statements. 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the district invested $6.9 million in capital additions.  
Further details are presented in the Financial Highlights section. 

Within the capital fund the following two balances are important as they represent funds 
available for future capital investment: 

 Local Capital Reserve – this balance forms part of accumulated surplus in the capital 
fund and represents funds available for future investment in capital assets. In Saanich, 
these funds are generated primarily from allocation of lease revenues designated for 
future asset renewal. 

 MEd Restricted Capital – this balance forms part of the deferred capital revenue balance 
in the capital fund and represents funds available for investment in capital assets at the 
discretion of the Ministry of Education and Childcare. These funds are generated 
primarily from capital project savings. 
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The table below presents the June 30, 2023 closing balances in Local Capital and MEd 
Restricted Capital and what portion of the balances remains uncommitted for future capital 
investment. 

 Local Capital MEd Restricted Capital 

Balance at June 30, 2023 477,625 167,442 
Committed for future 
investment 

477,625 - 

Uncommitted Balance - 167,442 
 

The local capital balance consists of the accumulated allocation of lease revenues for the future 
renewal of leased space. The MEd Restricted Capital balance has not been committed to a 
project at this time. 

Detailed information on the capital fund is presented in schedules 4 to 4D following the notes to 
the financial statements.  

 

CONTACTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide the School District’s stakeholders with a general 
overview of the School District’s finances and to demonstrate the School District’s 
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, please contact the Office of the Secretary Treasurer at 250-652-
7332. 
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School District No. 63 (Saanich)

MANAGEMENT REPORT
Version:  4166-3421-1438

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 63 (Saanich) have been prepared by management 
in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability 
Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the Province of British
Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management's responsibility. 
Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and schedules, and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial statements. 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's 
judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with 
certainty until future periods. 

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial 
information is produced. 

The Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich) (called the "Board") is responsible for ensuring that
management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises these 
responsibilities through the Board. The Board reviews internal financial statements regularly throughout 
the year and externally audited financial statements yearly. 

The external auditors, Office of the Auditor General of British Columbia, conduct an independent examination, 
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial
statements. The external auditors have full and free access to financial management of School District No. 63
(Saanich) and meet when required. The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their 
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

On behalf of School District No. 63 (Saanich) 

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education Date Signed

Signature of the Superintendent Date Signed

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

August 31, 2023 8:16 Page 1



Statement 1

2023 2022

Actual Actual

(Restated - Note 23)

$ $

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 22,012,831          21,801,778          

Accounts Receivable

Due from Province - Ministry of Education and Child Care 676,380               757,785               

Due from Province - Other 65,019                 -                          

Due from First Nations 877,020               993,555               

Other (Note 3) 1,681,035            1,680,240            

Portfolio Investments (Note 4) 211,584               208,765               

Construction Security Deposit (Note 5) 587,929               87,100                 

Total Financial Assets 26,111,798          25,529,223          

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Due to Province - Ministry of Education and Child Care 12,720                 -                          

Other (Note 6) 10,212,568          9,142,040            

Unearned Revenue (Note 7) 5,764,611            5,055,707            

Deferred Revenue (Note 8) 2,149,937            2,023,392            

Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 9) 118,349,608        119,585,324        

Employee Future Benefits (Note 10) 4,080,077            4,061,261            

Asset Retirement Obligation (Note 11) 12,688,641          12,688,641          

Total Liabilities 153,258,162        152,556,365        

Net Debt (127,146,364)      (127,027,142)      

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 12) 144,083,042        144,363,384        

Prepaid Expenses 421,978               368,575               

Total Non-Financial Assets 144,505,020        144,731,959        

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 13) 17,358,656          17,704,817          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) is comprised of:

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations 17,358,656          17,704,817          

Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

17,358,656          17,704,817          

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2023

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Approved by the Board

Contractual Obligations (Note 14)

Contractual Rights (Note 15)

Contingent Liabilities (Note 16)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 4166-3421-1438
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Statement 2

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 87,510,103          90,859,714          85,322,825          

Other 53,760                181,545               183,610               

Federal Grants 39,492                

Tuition 4,048,515            4,193,697            3,708,763            

Other Revenue 9,262,687            10,161,076          8,365,862            

Rentals and Leases 390,000               415,440               380,542               

Investment Income 487,120               791,767               208,900               

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 4,805,000            5,320,843            5,136,108            

Total Revenue 106,557,185        111,924,082        103,346,102        

Expenses (Note 18)

Instruction 89,265,357          90,184,042          85,552,617          

District Administration 3,612,839            3,499,815            3,060,284            

Operations and Maintenance 16,994,277          16,780,996          16,470,791          

Transportation and Housing 2,068,297            1,805,390            1,761,041            

Total Expense 111,940,770        112,270,243        106,844,733        

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (5,383,585)          (346,161)             (3,498,631)          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 17,704,817          21,203,448          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 17,358,656          17,704,817          

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 4166-3421-1438
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Statement 4

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (5,383,585)          (346,161)             (3,498,631)          

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (850,000)             (6,877,314)          (5,126,726)          

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 6,981,468            7,157,656            6,860,991            

Prior Period Adjustment - Adoption of Asset Retirement Obligations (12,688,641)        

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 6,131,468            280,342               (10,954,376)        

Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (421,978)             (368,575)             

Use of Prepaid Expenses 368,575               304,713               

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets -                          (53,403)               (63,862)               

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt, before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) 747,883               (119,222)             (14,516,869)        

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt (119,222)             (14,516,869)        

Net Debt, beginning of year (127,027,142)      (112,510,273)      

Net Debt, end of year (127,146,364)      (127,027,142)      

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Statement of Changes in Net Debt

Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 4166-3421-1438
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Statement 5

2023 2022

Actual Actual

(Restated - Note 23)

$ $

Operating Transactions

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (346,161) (3,498,631)         

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Decrease (Increase)

Accounts Receivable 132,126 302,112 

Prepaid Expenses (53,403) (63,862) 

Increase (Decrease)

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 1,083,248 99,855 

Unearned Revenue 708,904 860,793 

Deferred Revenue 126,545 161,797 

Employee Future Benefits 18,816 (26,852) 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 7,157,656 6,860,991          

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (5,320,843)         (5,136,108)         

Construction Works Deposit (500,829) 334,200 

Total Operating Transactions 3,006,059 (105,705) 

Capital Transactions

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (2,889,926)         (1,664,436)         

Tangible Capital Assets -WIP Purchased (3,987,388)         (3,462,290)         

Total Capital Transactions (6,877,314)         (5,126,726)         

Financing Transactions

Capital Revenue Received 4,085,127 5,263,875          

Total Financing Transactions 4,085,127 5,263,875          

Investing Transactions

Proceeds on Disposal of Portfolio Investments (2,819) (5,856) 

Total Investing Transactions (2,819) (5,856) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 211,053 25,588 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 21,801,778        21,776,190        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 22,012,831        21,801,778        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:

Cash 11,498,886        6,316,765          

Cash Equivalents 10,513,945        15,485,013        

22,012,831        21,801,778        

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 4166-3421-1438
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NOTE 1  AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 
The school district operates under authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation under the 
name of "The Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich)", and operates as "School District No. 63 
(Saanich)”. A board of education (“Board”) is elected for a four-year term and governs the school district. The 
school district provides educational programs to students enrolled in schools in the district, and is principally 
funded by the Province of British Columbia through the Ministry of Education and Child Care. School District 
No. 63 (Saanich) is exempt from federal and provincial corporate income taxes. 
 
The COVID 19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 2020 and has 
had a significant financial, market and social dislocating impact worldwide. Under direction of the Provincial 
Health Officer, all schools suspended in-class instruction in March 2020 and the school district remained open 
to continue to support students and families in a variety of ways. Parents were given the choice to send their 
children back to school on a gradual and part-time basis beginning June 1, 2020 and full-time beginning 
September 1, 2020 with new health and safety guidelines. The ongoing impact of the pandemic presents 
uncertainty over future cash flows, may have a significant impact on future operations including decreases in 
revenue, impairment of receivables, reduction in investment income and delays in completing capital project 
work. As the situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact are not known, an 
estimate of the future financial effect on the school district is not practicable at this time. 
 
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
The financial statements of the school district are prepared by management in accordance with the basis of 
accounting described below. Significant accounting policies of the school district are as follows: 
 
a) Basis of Accounting    

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget 
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. This Section requires that the 
financial statements be prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards except 
in regard to the accounting for government transfers as set out in Notes 2(f) and 2(m).  
 
In November, 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive through Restricted Contributions Regulation 
198/2011 providing direction for the reporting of restricted contributions whether they are received or 
receivable by the school district before or after this regulation was in effect. 
 
As noted in notes 2(f) and 2(m), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act and its 
related regulations require the school district to recognize government transfers for the acquisition of 
capital assets into revenue on the same basis as the related amortization expense. 
 
As these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a liability, Canadian public sector accounting 
standards would require that: 

• government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be recognized as 
revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the eligibility criteria have been 
met in accordance with public sector accounting standard PS3410; and  

• externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which the resources 
are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with public sector accounting 
standard PS3100. 
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NOTE 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
a) Basis of Accounting  (continued)  

As a result, revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related deferred capital 
revenue would be recorded differently under Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. 
  

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These cash equivalents 
generally have a maturity of three months or less at acquisition and are held for the purpose of meeting 
short-term cash commitments rather than for investing. 
 

c) Accounts Receivable 
 Accounts receivable are measured at amortized cost and shown net of allowance for doubtful accounts. 
 
d) Portfolio Investments  

The school district has investments in Guaranteed Investment Certificates (GICs) with terms to maturity 
of greater than one year. GICs are reported at cost. 

 
e) Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and receipt 
of proceeds for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be recognized in that 
future period when the courses, services, or products are provided. 

 
f) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue 

Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of restricted 
contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. When 
restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in a manner consistent 
with the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition of the contributions received 
as a liability as detailed in Note 2 (m). 
 
Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred capital 
revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the statement of operations.   
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

f) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue (continued) 
This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting 
standards, which require that government transfers be recognized as revenue when approved by the 
transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the transfer contains a stipulation that creates a 
liability in which case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is 
extinguished.   

 
g) Employee Future Benefits 
 The school district provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested benefits 

for certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. 
 
The school district accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and  
non-vested benefits under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, 
accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and 
death benefits. The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method pro-
rated on service and using management’s best estimate of expected salary escalation, termination rates, 
retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to measure obligations is based on the cost of 
borrowing.  The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected 
average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the plan.   
 
The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2022 and projected  
to March 31, 2025. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2025 for use at  
June 30, 2025. For the purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the employee 
future benefit costs, a measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods subsequent to July 1, 
2004. 
 
The school district and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal 
Pension Plan. The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are not separated. The 
costs are expensed as incurred. 

 
h) Asset Retirement Obligations 

A liability is recognized when, as at the financial reporting date: 
(a)     there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset; 
(b)     the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred; 
(c)     it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
(d)     a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 
 
The liability for the removal of asbestos and other hazardous material in several of the buildings owned 
by the School District has been initially recognized using the modified retroactive method.  The liability 
has been measured at current cost as the timing and amounts of future cash flows cannot be estimated.  
The resulting costs have been capitalized into the carrying amount of tangible capital assets and are being 
amortized on the same basis as the related tangible capital asset (see note 2 j). Assumptions used in the 
calculations are reviewed annually. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
i) Liability for Contaminated Sites 

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of a 
chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard. The 
liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is 
recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the following criteria are met: 
 

o an environmental standard exists; 
o contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 
o the school district: 

 is directly responsible; or 
 accepts responsibility;  

o it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
o a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

 
The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of remediation including operation, 
maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated 
site. 
 

j) Tangible Capital Assets 
The following criteria apply: 

• Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes amounts 
that are directly related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement 
or betterment of the assets. Cost also includes overhead directly attributable to construction 
as well as interest costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the 
asset. 

• Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of 
donation, except in circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, which 
are then recognized at nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from related parties are 
recorded at carrying value.  

• Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial 
completion. 

• Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they no 
longer contribute to the ability of the school district to provide services or when the value of 
future economic benefits associated with the sites and buildings are less than their net book 
value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the Statement of Operations. 

• Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off. 
• Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these 

financial statements. 
• The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Work in progress is not 
amortized until available for productive use. It is management’s responsibility to determine 
the appropriate useful lives for tangible capital assets. These useful lives are reviewed on a  
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
j) Tangible Capital Assets (continued) 

regular basis or if significant events initiate the need to revise. Estimated useful life is as 
follows: 
 

Buildings 40 years 
Furniture & Equipment 10 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Computer Software 5 years 
Computer Hardware 5 years 

 
k) Prepaid Expenses 

Amounts for insurance and other services are included as a prepaid expense and stated at acquisition 
cost and are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit from it.  

 
l) Funds and Reserves 

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board are set aside in accumulated surplus for future operating and 
capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to the respective fund when 
approved (see Note 13 – Accumulated Surplus). 

 
m) Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are recognized on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events occurred 
that gave rise to the revenues, the amounts are considered to be collectible and can be reasonably 
estimated. 

 
Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue except where 
the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility criteria are the criteria that 
the school district has to meet in order to receive the contributions including authorization by the 
transferring government. 
 
For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use, revenue 
is recognized as follows: 

• Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and 
recognized as revenue in the year related expenses are incurred, 

• Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are 
purchased, and 

• Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions other than sites are recorded 
as deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related assets.  

 
Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized over the 
useful life of the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when received or 
receivable. 

 
The accounting treatment for restricted contributions that are government transfers is not consistent 
with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards, which require that government 
transfers be recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met  
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NOTE 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
m) Revenue Recognition (continued) 

unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for liability recognition in which case the 
transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.    
 
Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service is 
performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed. 
 

 Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or related Act, 
investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue balance. 

 
n) Expenditures 

Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received during 
the year is expensed.   
 
Categories of Salaries 

• Principals and Vice-Principals employed under an administrative officer contract are categorized 
as Principals and Vice-Principals. 

• Superintendents, Assistant Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Directors of Instruction, 
Trustees and other employees excluded from union contracts are categorized as Other 
Professionals. 

 
 Allocation of Costs  

• Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever possible, 
expenditures are determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to specific 
instructional programs, such as special and indigenous education, are allocated to these 
programs. All other costs are allocated to related programs. 

• Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated based 
on the time spent in each function and program. School-based clerical salaries are allocated to 
school administration and partially to other programs to which they may be assigned. Principals 
and Vice-Principals salaries are allocated to school administration and may be partially allocated 
to other programs to recognize their other responsibilities. 

• Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the same 
proportions, as the individual’s salary. 

• Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification. 

 
o) Financial Instruments  

A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to receive or 
deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray these rights and obligations 
in the financial statements. The school district recognizes a financial instrument when it becomes a party 
to a financial instrument contract.  
 
Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, portfolio investments, 
and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. All financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or 
amortized cost and the associated transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these instruments 
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NOTE 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
o) Financial Instruments (continued) 

upon initial recognition. Transaction costs are incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of a financial asset or a financial liability.  
 
All financial assets are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets are impaired, impairment 
losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-down of a portfolio investment to reflect a 
loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value.  
  
For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is used to 
determine interest revenue or expense.  
 

p) Measurement Uncertainty 
Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 2(a) 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.  
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the potential impairment of assets, 
liability for asset retirement obligations, rates for amortization and estimated employee future benefits.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

q)    Future Changes in Accounting Policies 
PS 3400 Revenue issued November 2018 establishes standards on how to account for and report on 
revenue and is effective July 1, 2023. Specifically, it differentiates between revenue arising from 
transactions that include performance obligations, referred to as "exchange transactions", and 
transactions that do not have performance obligations, referred to as "non-exchange transactions. 
 
Revenue from transactions with performance obligations should be recognized when (or as) the school 
district satisfies a performance obligation by providing the promised goods or services to a payor.  
 
Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations should be recognized when a school district: 
 (a)     has the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources; and 
 (b)     identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset. 
 
This standard may be applied retroactively or prospectively. Management is in the process of assessing 
the impact of adopting this standard on the school district’s financial results. 

 
r)    Comparative Figures 
 

Certain comparative figures presented in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform to 
the financial statement presentation adopted in the current year and the change in accounting policy 
referred to in note 23.  
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NOTE 3  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE – OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022  
 $ $ 

Due from Federal Government 180,336 105,995 
Other  100,062 42,913 
BCPSEA and PEBT benefit surplus 1,400,637 1,531,332 
   
 1,681,035 1,680,240 

 
 
NOTE 4  PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS 

  
June 30, 2023 

 
June 30, 2022   

Investments measured at cost: $ $ 
    GIC’s 211,584  208,765 

 
 
NOTE 5 CONSTRUCTION SECURITY DEPOSIT 

The school district has paid construction security deposits as security for performance of various obligations 
during construction in progress.    

  
June 30, 2023 

 
June 30, 2022    

$ $ 
District of Saanich 6,680 87,100 
District of Central Saanich 581,249 - 
     587,929  87,100 
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NOTE 6 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES – OTHER 
  

June 30, 2023 
 

June 30, 2022   
 $ $ 
Trade payables  1,526,541  1,219,357 
Salaries and benefits payable 8,180,782 7,430,193 
Accrued vacation pay 505,245 492,490 
  

10,212,568 
 

9,142,040 
 

 
NOTE 7 UNEARNED REVENUE 
 

  
June 30, 2023 

 
June 30, 2022 

 $  $ 
Balance, beginning of year 
 

5,055,707 4,194,914 

Changes for the year:   
 Increase:   
  Tuition fees collected 

  Homestay fees collected  
4,646,942 
2,621,179  

4,247,847 
2,534,994 

 Decrease: 7,268,121 6,782,841 
   
  Tuition and other fees recognized as revenue 
                 Homestay fees recognized as revenue            

(4,193,697) 
(2,365,520) 

 (3,708,763) 
 (2,213,285) 

Net changes for the year 708,904  860,793 
 
Balance, end of year 

 
5,764,611 

 
5,055,707 
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NOTE 8  DEFERRED REVENUE 
Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a restricted 
contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board, i.e., the 
stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been fulfilled.  Detailed information 
about the changes in deferred revenue is included in Schedule 3A. 

  
June 30, 2023 

 
June 30, 2022   

 
Balance, beginning of year 

$ 
2,023,392  

$ 
1,861,595 

Changes for the year:   
 Increase:   
  Provincial Grants  13,474,963  10,801,601 
 Other 3,715,161  2,890,672 

  Investment Income 4,999  6,283 
 17,195,123  13,698,556 

 Decrease:   
               Transfers to Revenue (17,068,578)   (13,508,935) 
               Recovered - (27,824) 
      

Net changes for the year 126,545 161,797 
 
Balance, end of year 

 
2,149,937 

 
2,023,392 
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NOTE 9  DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE 
Deferred capital revenue  includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the contributor 
for the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted contribution in the 
Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once spent, the contributions are 
amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired.  Detailed information about the changes in 
deferred capital revenue is included in Schedules 4C and 4D.   

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
Balance, deferred capital revenue, subject to   
            amortization, beginning of year 

$ 
117,452,523  

$ 
116,175,381      

Changes for the year:   
 Increase:   
         Capital Additions 
               Transfer from work in progress 

1,184,480  
880,648  

628,501 
5,784,749 

 Decrease:   
         Amortization (5,320,843) (5,136,108) 
Net changes for the year (3,255,715)  1,277,142 
Balance, deferred capital revenue, subject to  
          amortization, end of year 

 
114,196,808  

 
117,452,523 

   
Balance, deferred capital revenue, not subject to amortization, 
beginning of year 

874,074 3,196,533 

Transfer from unspent deferred capital revenue – work in progress 
Transfer completed projects to deferred capital revenue 

3,987,388  
(880,648) 

3,462,290 
(5,784,749) 

Balance, deferred capital revenue not subject to amortization,  
                end of year 

 
3,980,814 

 
874,074 
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NOTE 9  DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE (continued) 
 
Balance, unspent deferred capital revenue, 
  beginning of year 

 
 
 

1,258,727  

 
 
 

85,643 
Changes for the year:   
 Increase:   
         Provincial Grants, Ministry of Education and Child Care 3,363,265 3,543,925 
         Provincial Grants, Other 
               Other 
                Investment income 

Receivable from Ministry of Education and Child Care – COA Draws 
Receivable from Ministry of Education and Child Care - Daycare 

- 
149,561 

2,100 
48,567 

521,634 

1,186,419 
359,512 

1,974 
172,045 

-  
 Decrease:   

         Transferred to DCR – Capital Additions 
Transferred to DCR – Work in Progress 

(1,184,480)  
(3,987,388) 

  

(628,501) 
(3,462,290) 

Net changes for the year (1,086,741) 1,173,084 
   

Balance, unspent deferred capital revenue,  
             end of year 

 
171,986 

 
1,258,727 

   
Balance, end of year 118,349,608 119,585,324 
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NOTE 10  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, 
retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits are paid 
and accordingly, there are no plan assets. Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, the school district 
has provided for the payment of these benefits. 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022   
 
Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation     

 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – April 1  

$ 
4,414,972 

$ 
4,498,120 

Service Cost 336,442 368,344 
Interest Cost 146,862 116,935 
Benefit Payments (556,874) (524,716) 
Actuarial Loss  39,228 (43,711) 
 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 

 
4,380,630 

 
4,414,972 

 
Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year 

Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 4,380,630 4,414,972 
Market Value of Plan Assets – March 31 - - 
Funded Status – Deficit (4,380,630) (4,414,972) 
Employer Contributions After Measurement Date 329,763 284,738 
Benefits Expense After Measurement Date (126,850) (120,826) 
Unamortized Net Actuarial Loss 97,640 189,799 
 
Accrued Benefit Liability – June 30 

 
(4,080,077) 

 
(4,061,261) 

 
Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability 

Accrued Benefit Liability – July 1  4,061,261 4,088,113 
Net expense for Fiscal Year 620,714 616,454 
Employer Contributions (601,898) (643,306) 
 
Accrued Benefit Liability – June 30 

 
4,080,077 

 
4,061,261 

 
Components of Net Benefit Expense  
 

 
Service Cost 

$ 
328,154 

$ 
360,369 

Interest Cost  181,087 124,417  
Amortization of Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 75,459 131,669 
 

Net Benefit Expense (Income) 584,700 616,455 
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NOTE 10  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued) 
 
The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the school district’s accrued benefit obligations 
are:  

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022   
Discount Rate – April 1 3.25% 2.50% 
Discount Rate – March 31 4.00% 3.25% 

Long Term Salary Growth – April 1 2.50% + 
seniority 

2.50% + 
seniority 

Long Term Salary Growth – March 31 2.50% + 
seniority 

2.50% + 
seniority 

EARSL – March 31 11.1 years 11.1 years 
 
NOTE 11 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 
 
Legal liabilities exist for the removal and disposal of asbestos within some district owned buildings that will 
undergo major renovations or demolition in the future. A reasonable estimate of the fair value of the 
obligation has been recognized using the modified retroactive approach as at July 1, 2022 (see Note 23 – Prior 
Period Adjustment – Change in Accounting Policy).  The obligation has been measured at current cost as the 
timing of future cash flows cannot be reasonably determined. These costs have been capitalized as part of 
the assets’ carrying value and are amortized over the assets’ estimated useful lives. 

  
  
 
Asset Retirement Obligation, July 1, 2022 (see Note 23)  

$ 
12,688,641 

Settlements during the year                    - 
Asset Retirement Obligation, closing balance 12,688,641 

 
NOTE 12 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Net Book Value: 

 
Net Book Value 

2023 

Net Book Value 
2022 (restated see 

Note 23) 
 
Sites 

$ 
6,088,418 

$ 
6,088,418 

Buildings 125,031,774 129,172,178 
Buildings - Work in Progress 2,793,079 384,116 
Furniture & Equipment 5,804,800 5,524,770 
Furniture & Equipment - Work in Progress 1,187,735 489,958 
Vehicles 871,411 916,684 
Computer Software 6,753 21,213 
Computer Hardware 2,299,072 1,766,047 

Total 144,083,042 144,363,384 
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NOTE 12 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 
June 30, 2023 
 

Cost:   Opening Cost Additions    Disposals             Transfers  Total 2023 
 
Sites 

$ 
6,088,418 

$ 
-   

$ 
           - 

$ 
  - 

$ 
6,088,418 

Buildings 240,471,751 905,100 - 349,847 241,726,698 
  Work in Progress 384,116 2,758,810 - (349,847) 2,793,079 
Furniture & Equipment 8,870,039 645,742 (986,362) 530,801 9,060,220 
  Work in Progress 489,958 1,228,578 - (530,801) 1,187,735 
Vehicles 1,579,837 118,499 (2,746) - 1,695,590 
Computer Software 98,444 - (52,285) - 46,159 
Computer Hardware 3,039,001 1,220,585 (422,988) - 3,836,598 
      
Total 261,021,564 6,877,314 (1,464,381) - 266,434,497 

 

Accumulated 
Amortization: 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortization 

(Restated – Note 23) Additions Disposals 

 
 
 
 

Transfers  Total 2023  
 
Sites 

$ 
- 

$ 
- 

$ 
- 

$                     
- 

$ 
- 

Buildings  111,299,573 5,395,351 - - 116,694,924 
Furniture & Equipment 3,345,269 896,513 (986,362) - 3,255,420 
Vehicles 663,153 163,772 (2,746) - 824,179 
Computer Software 77,231 14,460 (52,285) - 39,406 
Computer Hardware 1,272,954 687,560 (422,988) - 1,537,526 
      
Total 116,658,180 7,157,656 (1,464,381)                      - 122,351,455 
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NOTE 12 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 
June 30, 2022 
 

Cost: 
  Opening 

Cost 

 
ARO (see 
Note 23) Additions 

   
Disposals 

             
 

Transfers Total 2022 
 
Sites 

$ 
6,088,418 

 $ 
-   

$ 
           - 

$ 
  - 

$ 
6,088,418 

Buildings 222,395,624 12,688,641 507,661 - 4,879,825 240,471,751 
  Work in Progress 3,153,760  2,110,181 - (4,879,825) 384,116 
Furniture & 
Equipment 

8,020,025  377,455 (432,368) 904,927 8,870,039 

  Work in Progress 42,776  1,352,109 - (904,927) 489,958 
Vehicles 1,668,425  92,447 (181,035) - 1,579,837 
Computer Software 121,484  - (23,040) - 98,444 
Computer Hardware 2,584,204  686,873 (232,076) - 3,039,001 
       
Total 244,074,716 12,688,641 5,126,726 (868,519) - 261,021,564 

 

Accumulated 
Amortization: 

Opening 
Accumulated 
Amortization 

 
 
ARO (see 
Note 23) Additions Disposals 

 
 
 

Transfers 

Total 2022 
(restated – 

Note 23)  

 
Sites 

$ 
- 

 $ 
- 

$ 
- 

$                     
- 

$ 
- 

Buildings  93,341,169 12,688,641 5,269,763 - - 111,299,573 
Furniture & 
Equipment 

2,933,136  844,501 (432,368) - 3,345,269 

Vehicles 681,775  162,413 (181,035) - 663,153 
Computer Software 78,278  21,993 (23,040) - 77,231 
Computer Hardware 942,709  562,321 (232,076) - 1,272,954 
       
Total 97,977,067 12,688,641 6,860,991 (868,519) - 116,658,180 
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NOTE 13 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 
 
Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as follows: 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022  
(restated – Note 23) 

 
Invested in tangible capital assets 

$ 
13,221,588 

$ 
13,352,955 

Local capital surplus 477,625 356,905 
Operating surplus 3,659,443 3,994,957 
   
 17,358,656 17,704,817 

 
Inter-fund transfers between the operating, special purpose and capital funds for the year ended June 30, 
2023, were as follows: 

• $1,641,865 was transferred from the operating fund to the capital fund and $63,581 was transferred 
from the special purpose fund to the capital fund for the purchase of capital assets.  

• $116,820 was transferred from the operating fund to the local capital fund for future purchases of 
capital assets.  

 
The operating surplus has been internally restricted (appropriated) by the Board for the 2023/2024 budget. 
 

  June 30, 2023 
 

   
School Activities  
District Activities 
Appropriated for 2023/24 Budget 

 
   

252,928 
522,701 

1,384,307 

$ 

 
Subtotal Internally Restricted 

  
2,159,936 

Unrestricted Operating Surplus   1,499,507 
 
Total Available for Future Operations 

  
3,659,443 
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NOTE 14 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS  
 
The school district has entered into contracts related to capital projects with a remaining cost of 
approximately $4,249,359.  
 
The following table summarizes other contractual obligations of the school district:  
 

$ 
Contractual Obligations 2024 2025 2026 2027 

 
2028 

 
Thereafter 

Various purchase contracts 273,761 284,714 293,956 38,600 41,035 - 
 
NOTE 15 CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS    
 
Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will result in 
revenues and assets in the future. The school district’s contractual rights arise because of contracts entered 
into for the license or lease of district facilities. The following table summarizes the contractual rights of the 
school district for future assets: 
 

$ 
Contractual Rights 2024 2025 2026 2027 

 
2028 

 
Thereafter 

Leases of Property 405,126 430,067 416,643 423,737 154,460 706,846 
 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
The school district, in conducting its usual business activities, is involved in various legal claims and litigation.  
In the event any unsettled claims are successful, management believes that such claims are not expected to 
have a material effect on the school district’s financial position, and accordingly, no provision has been made 
in these financial statements for any liability that may result.  Any losses arising from these actions will be 
recorded in the year in which the related litigation is settled. 
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NOTE 17 BUDGET FIGURES 
 
Budget figures included in the financial statements were approved by the Board through the adoption of an 
amended annual budget bylaw on February 15, 2023.  The original annual budget was adopted on June 15, 
2022.   The original and amended budgets are presented below.  
 

 
2023 Amended 
Annual Budget  

2023 Annual 
 Budget  

Revenues   

 $ $ 
         Provincial Grants 87,563,863 82,160,738 

Tuition 4,048,515 4,137,850 
Other Revenue 9,262,687 9,142,187 
Rentals and Leases 390,000 390,000 
Investment Income 487,120 200,000 
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 4,805,000 5,000,000 

Total Revenue 106,557,185 101,030,775 
   
Expenses   

Instruction 89,265,357 82,506,152 
District Administration 3,612,839 3,600,145 
Operations and Maintenance 16,994,277 16,579,057 
Transportation and Housing 2,068,297 1,854,543 

Total Expense 111,940,770 104,539,897 
Net Revenue (Expense) (5,383,585) (3,509,122) 

Budgeted Allocation of Surplus 4,174,237 2,530,968 
   
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit) for the year          (1,209,348)          (978,154) 
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NOTE 18 EXPENSE BY OBJECT 
 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022  

$  $ 
Salaries and benefits  88,966,754 85,976,663 
Services and supplies  16,145,833 14,007,076 
Amortization 
  

 7,157,656 6,860,994 

   
112,270,243 

  
106,844,733 

NOTE 19  EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS     
The school district and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal Pension Plan 
(jointly trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing plan members and 
employers, are responsible for administering the pension plans, including investing assets and 
administering benefits. The plans are multi-employer defined benefit pension plans. Basic pension benefits 
are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2022, the Teachers’ Pension Plan has about 51,000 active 
members and approximately 41,000 retired members. As of December 31, 2022, the Municipal Pension 
Plan has about 240,000 active members, including approximately 30,000 from school districts.  
 
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans and 
adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member 
contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age 
normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions sufficient 
to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. This rate may be adjusted for the amortization 
of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability. 
 
The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2020, indicated a 
$1.584 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  
 
The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated a 
$3.761 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.   
 
The school district paid $7,331,367 for employer contributions to the plans for the year ended June 30, 
2023 (2022: $7,130,907). 

 
The next valuation for the Teachers’ Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2023, with results available 
in 2024. The next valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2024, with results 
available in 2025.  
 
Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because 
the plans record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent 
and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual employers participating in the 
plans. 
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NOTE 20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The school district is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia ministries, 
agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown corporations. Related parties 
also include key management personnel and close family members. Transactions with these entities, unless 
disclosed separately, are considered to be in the normal course of operations and are recorded at the 
exchange amount. 
 
NOTE 21 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 
 
The operations of the school district are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of Education and 
Child Care and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs. These financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
NOTE 22 RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The School District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:  credit risk, 
market risk and liquidity risk.  The Board ensures that the School District has identified its risks and ensures 
that management monitors and controls them. 
 
a) Credit Risk  

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to an institution if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.  Such risks arise principally from certain financial 
assets held consisting of cash and cash equivalents, amounts receivable and investments.  
 
The school district is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by a borrower.  This risk is 
mitigated as most amounts receivable are due from the Province and are collectible.  
 
It is management’s opinion that the school district is not exposed to significant credit risk associated with 
its cash deposits and investments as they are placed in recognized British Columbia institutions and the 
school district invests solely in guaranteed investment certificates.  

 
b) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices.  Market risk is comprised of currency risk and interest rate risk.  
 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in the foreign exchange rates.  It is management’s opinion that the school district is 
not exposed to significant currency risk, as amounts held and purchases made in foreign currency are 
insignificant.  
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in the market interest rates. The school district is exposed to interest rate risk through 
its investments.  It is management’s opinion that the school district is not exposed to significant interest  
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NOTE 22 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

b)    Market Risk (continued) 
 
rate risk as they invest solely in guaranteed investment certificates that have a maturity date of no more 
than 3 years.  
 

 
c) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the school district will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
become due.  
 
The school district manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash flows from 
operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the school district’s reputation. 
 
Risk Management and insurance services for all school districts in British Columbia are provided by the 
Risk Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance. There have been no changes to risk exposure from 
2022 related to credit, market or liquidity risks. 

 
NOTE 23 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 
 
On July 1, 2022 the School District adopted Canadian public sector accounting standard PS 3280 Asset 
Retirement Obligations. This new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets such as 
asbestos removal in buildings that will undergo major renovation or demolition in the future (see Note 11). 
This standard was adopted using the modified retroactive approach.  
 
On July 1, 2022 the School District recognized an asset retirement obligation relating to several owned 
buildings that contain asbestos. The liability has been measured at current cost as the timing and amounts of 
future cash flows cannot be estimated. The associated costs have been reported as an increase to the carrying 
value of the associated tangible capital assets. Accumulated amortization has been recorded from the later 
of, the date of acquisition of the related asset or April 1, 1988 (effective date of the Hazardous Waste 
Regulation (April 1, 1988) – Part 6 – Management of Specific Hazardous Wastes). 
 
The impact of the prior period adjustment on the June 30, 2022 comparative amounts is as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Increase 
(Decrease) 

  
Asset Retirement Obligation (liability) $ 12,688,641 
Tangible Capital Assets – cost $ 12,688,641 
Tangible Capital Assets – accumulated amortization $ 12,688,641    
Operations & Maintenance Expense – Asset amortization (2022)    - 
Accumulated Surplus – Invested in Capital Assets  ($12,688,641) 



Schedule 1 (Unaudited)

2023 2022

Operating Special Purpose Capital Actual Actual

Fund Fund Fund (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $ $ $

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 3,994,957            13,709,860          17,704,817          33,892,089          

Prior Period Adjustments (12,688,641)         

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 3,994,957            -                           13,709,860          17,704,817          21,203,448          

Changes for the year

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 1,423,171            63,581                 (1,832,913)           (346,161)              (3,498,631)           

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (1,641,865)           (63,581)                1,705,446            -                           

Local Capital (116,820)              116,820               -                           

Net Changes for the year (335,514)              -                           (10,647)                (346,161)              (3,498,631)           

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year - Statement 2 3,659,443            -                           13,699,213          17,358,656          17,704,817          

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 4166-3421-1438

 August 31, 2023  8:16 Page 32



Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 74,188,020        77,514,902        74,605,455        

Other 53,760               181,545             183,610             

Federal Grants 39,492               

Tuition 4,048,515          4,193,697          3,708,763          

Other Revenue 6,277,687          6,442,309          5,574,297          

Rentals and Leases 390,000             415,440             380,542             

Investment Income 480,000             782,868             205,968             

Total Revenue 85,437,982        89,530,761        84,698,127        

Expenses

Instruction 73,700,164        73,776,687        72,922,289        

District Administration 3,526,204          3,413,180          2,973,649          

Operations and Maintenance 9,767,530          9,217,468          9,025,217          

Transportation and Housing 1,658,321          1,700,255          1,553,652          

Total Expense 88,652,219        88,107,590        86,474,807        

Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (3,214,237)         1,423,171          (1,776,680)         

Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 4,174,237          

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (850,000)            (1,641,865)         (1,035,089)         

Local Capital (110,000)            (116,820)            (109,982)            

Total Net Transfers (960,000)            (1,758,685)         (1,145,071)         

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                        (335,514)            (2,921,751)         

Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 3,994,957          6,916,708          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 3,659,443          3,994,957          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted 2,159,936          3,527,484          

Unrestricted 1,499,507          467,473             

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 3,659,443          3,994,957          

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Schedule of Operating Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 4166-3421-1438
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Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 76,774,842        76,627,629        76,549,164        

ISC/LEA Recovery (3,552,472)         (3,190,534)         (3,079,193)         

Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants

Pay Equity 377,315             377,315             377,315             

Funding for Graduated Adults 362,048             335,439             463,074             

Student Transportation Fund 280,000             280,000             280,000             

FSA Scorer Grant 15,214               15,214               12,964               

Early Learning Framework (ELF) Implementation 1,442                 1,442                 2,131                 

Labour Settlement Funding 3,068,397          

Operating Grant Enrolment Adjustment Special Needs (70,369)              -                        -                        

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 74,188,020        77,514,902        74,605,455        

Provincial Grants - Other 53,760               181,545             183,610             

Federal Grants -                        -                        39,492               

Tuition

International and Out of Province Students 4,048,515          4,193,697          3,708,763          

Total Tuition 4,048,515          4,193,697          3,708,763          

Other Revenues

Funding from First Nations 3,552,472          3,192,947          2,723,698          

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous and School Generated 234,065             529,491             428,694             

Cafeteria 68,000               247,679             184,506             

Reading Recovery -                        -                        69,292               

Textbook Deposits and Distance Ed Fees 75,000               63,077               108,010             

International and Out of Province Homestay Fees 2,348,150          2,365,520          2,029,855          

Community Use -                        43,595               30,242               

Total Other Revenue 6,277,687          6,442,309          5,574,297          

Rentals and Leases 390,000             415,440             380,542             

Investment Income 480,000             782,868             205,968             

Total Operating Revenue 85,437,982        89,530,761        84,698,127        

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 4166-3421-1438
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Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $

Salaries

Teachers 33,619,707        34,010,766        35,576,010        

Principals and Vice Principals 4,906,441          4,782,113          4,636,514          

Educational Assistants 6,230,650          5,802,868          5,214,769          

Support Staff 8,917,970          8,494,814          8,463,733          

Other Professionals 3,333,828          3,342,948          3,151,514          

Substitutes 3,778,550          4,336,063          3,919,473          

Total Salaries 60,787,146        60,769,572        60,962,013        

Employee Benefits 15,477,935        16,021,019        15,168,799        

Total Salaries and Benefits 76,265,081        76,790,591        76,130,812        

Services and Supplies

Services 5,151,057          5,134,765          4,823,714          

Professional Development and Travel 807,922             560,033             445,956             

Rentals and Leases 169,000             157,541             137,659             

Dues and Fees 327,528             304,967             385,591             

Insurance 165,460             208,047             187,184             

Supplies 4,158,136          3,344,988          2,879,215          

Utilities 1,608,035          1,606,658          1,484,676          

Total Services and Supplies 12,387,138        11,316,999        10,343,995        

Total Operating Expense 88,652,219        88,107,590        86,474,807        

School District No. 63 (Saanich)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 25,256,816          514,520               78,994                 339,205               3,679,541            29,869,076          

1.03 Career Programs 398,446               149,851               64,208                 694                      613,199               

1.07 Library Services 944,319               369,270               1,235                   1,314,824            

1.08 Counselling 1,183,121            16,957                 8,494                   1,208,572            

1.10 Special Education 4,030,881            184,289               5,282,923            285,827               757,327               254,841               10,796,088          

1.30 English Language Learning 831,154               831,154               

1.31 Indigenous Education 416,777               146,213               291,100               36,575                 72,444                 2,370                   965,479               

1.41 School Administration 3,773,261            1,737,295            45,794                 5,556,350            

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 843,135               146,873               376,825               169,174               2,167                   1,538,174            

Total Function 1 33,904,649          4,782,113            5,802,868            3,209,205            998,945               3,995,136            52,692,916          

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 41,304                 843,000               884,304               

4.40 School District Governance 124,268               124,268               

4.41 Business Administration 432,327               776,475               1,643                   1,210,445            

Total Function 4 -                          -                          -                          473,631               1,743,743            1,643                   2,219,017            

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 106,117               100,256               485,889               39,221                 731,483               

5.50 Maintenance Operations 3,577,340            234,457               3,811,797            

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 492,069               492,069               

5.56 Utilities -                          

Total Function 5 106,117               -                          -                          4,169,665            485,889               273,678               5,035,349            

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 83,519                 114,371               197,890               

7.70 Student Transportation 558,794               65,606                 624,400               

Total Function 7 -                          -                          -                          642,313               114,371               65,606                 822,290               

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Functions 1 - 9 34,010,766          4,782,113            5,802,868            8,494,814            3,342,948            4,336,063            60,769,572          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Indigenous Education

1.41 School Administration

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2023

2023 2023 2022

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and Actual Budget Actual

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies (Note 17) (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

29,869,076          8,247,840            38,116,916          2,460,407            40,577,323          39,894,182          42,801,306          

613,199               141,697               754,896               696,579               1,451,475            1,439,079            1,395,818            

1,314,824            325,003               1,639,827            55,620                 1,695,447            1,482,042            1,444,087            

1,208,572            238,687               1,447,259            -                          1,447,259            1,203,168            1,365,495            

10,796,088          2,889,859            13,685,947          525,475               14,211,422          15,480,307          12,707,883          

831,154               194,579               1,025,733            5,187                   1,030,920            737,019               1,050,191            

965,479               225,789               1,191,268            78,142                 1,269,410            1,528,660            1,189,533            

5,556,350            1,309,226            6,865,576            106,899               6,972,475            6,598,061            6,420,694            

1,538,174            401,601               1,939,775            3,181,181            5,120,956            5,337,646            4,547,282            

52,692,916          13,974,281          66,667,197          7,109,490            73,776,687          73,700,164          72,922,289          

884,304               175,395               1,059,699            103,462               1,163,161            1,156,772            1,041,900            

124,268               6,048                   130,316               111,597               241,913               308,050               190,148               

1,210,445            302,626               1,513,071            495,035               2,008,106            2,061,382            1,741,601            

2,219,017            484,069               2,703,086            710,094               3,413,180            3,526,204            2,973,649            

731,483               120,369               851,852               334,278               1,186,130            1,292,511            1,146,189            

3,811,797            1,072,804            4,884,601            745,428               5,630,029            6,058,593            5,649,561            

492,069               137,883               629,952               164,699               794,651               808,391               744,791               

-                          -                          1,606,658            1,606,658            1,608,035            1,484,676            

5,035,349            1,331,056            6,366,405            2,851,063            9,217,468            9,767,530            9,025,217            

197,890               42,380                 240,270               6,056                   246,326               314,104               199,818               

624,400               189,233               813,633               640,296               1,453,929            1,344,217            1,353,834            

822,290               231,613               1,053,903            646,352               1,700,255            1,658,321            1,553,652            

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

60,769,572          16,021,019          76,790,591          11,316,999          88,107,590          88,652,219          86,474,807          
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Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 17) (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 13,322,083        13,344,812        10,717,370        

Other Revenue 2,985,000          3,718,767          2,791,565          

Investment Income 4,999                 

Total Revenue 16,307,083        17,068,578        13,508,935        

Expenses

Instruction 15,565,193        16,407,355        12,630,328        

District Administration 86,635               86,635               86,635               

Operations and Maintenance 405,872             405,872             705,639             

Transportation and Housing 249,383             105,135             86,333               

Total Expense 16,307,083        17,004,997        13,508,935        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        63,581               -                        

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (63,581)              

Total Net Transfers -                        (63,581)              -                        

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                        -                        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year -                        -                        

School District No. 63 (Saanich)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom

Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year -                          61,314                247,181              1,486,632           -                          14,948                23,274              -                            -                          

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 305,872              266,534              96,000                19,600                172,006            440,482                880,374              

Other 232,268              3,482,893           

Investment Income 4,999                  

305,872              266,534              237,267              3,482,893           96,000                19,600                172,006            440,482                880,374              

Less: Allocated to Revenue 305,872              264,794              213,332              3,510,434           93,940                16,579                173,395            440,482                880,374              

Deferred Revenue, end of year -                          63,054                271,116              1,459,091           2,060                  17,969                21,885              -                            -                          

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 305,872              264,794              93,940                16,579                173,395            440,482                880,374              

Other Revenue 208,333              3,510,434           

Investment Income 4,999                  

305,872              264,794              213,332              3,510,434           93,940                16,579                173,395            440,482                880,374              

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 45,316              

Principals and Vice Principals 64,418                  147,059              

Educational Assistants 214,882              9,810                198,240              

Support Staff 56,897                287,425                79,296                

Other Professionals 72,803                

Substitutes 19,797              216,450              

-                          214,882              -                          -                          56,897                -                          74,923              351,843                713,848              

Employee Benefits 49,423                14,584                21,869              88,639                  154,526              

Services and Supplies 305,872              489                     213,332              3,446,853           22,459                16,579                76,603              12,000                

305,872              264,794              213,332              3,446,853           93,940                16,579                173,395            440,482                880,374              

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers -                          -                          -                          63,581                -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (63,581)               

-                          -                          -                          (63,581)               -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          

Net Revenue (Expense) -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                            -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Investment Income

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Safe Return Federal Safe

Classroom Classroom First Nation Mental Changing to School / Return to Student & ECL

Enhancement Enhancement Student Health Results for Restart: Health Class / Family (Early Care

Fund - Staffing Fund - Remedies Transportation in Schools Young Children & Safety Grant Ventilation Fund Affordability & Learning)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

-                          -                          164,383              -                          25,660                -                          -                          

8,788,760           1,473,693           42,480                52,000                25,000                737,162              175,000              

8,788,760           1,473,693           42,480                52,000                25,000                -                          -                          737,162              175,000              

8,788,760           1,473,693           105,135              52,000                21,421                -                          -                          644,524              83,843                

-                          -                          101,728              -                          29,239                -                          -                          92,638                91,157                

8,788,760           1,473,693           105,135              52,000                21,421                644,524              83,843                

8,788,760           1,473,693           105,135              52,000                21,421                -                          -                          644,524              83,843                

7,087,710           

59,070                

16,521                

45,165                

1,228,078           12,779                4,648                  

7,087,710           1,228,078           45,165                16,521                12,779                -                          -                          -                          63,718                

1,701,050           245,615              11,992                3,479                  2,276                  16,346                

47,978                32,000                6,366                  644,524              3,779                  

8,788,760           1,473,693           105,135              52,000                21,421                -                          -                          644,524              83,843                

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other

Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Other Revenue

Investment Income

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

TOTAL

$

2,023,392           

13,474,963         

3,715,161           

4,999                  

17,195,123         

17,068,578         

2,149,937           

13,344,812         

3,718,767           

4,999                  

17,068,578         

7,133,026           

270,547              

439,453              

468,783              

72,803                

1,481,752           

9,866,364           

2,309,799           

4,828,834           

17,004,997         

63,581                

(63,581)               

(63,581)               

-                          

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2023 2022

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund Actual

(Note 17) Capital Assets Capital Balance (Restated - Note 23)

$ $ $ $ $

Revenues

Investment Income 7,120             3,900             3,900             2,932                

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 4,805,000      5,320,843                   5,320,843      5,136,108         

Total Revenue 4,812,120      5,320,843                   3,900             5,324,743      5,139,040         

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 6,820,875      7,157,656                   7,157,656      6,739,935         

Transportation and Housing 160,593         -                    121,056            

Total Expense 6,981,468      7,157,656                   -                    7,157,656      6,860,991         

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (2,169,348)     (1,836,813)                  3,900             (1,832,913)     (1,721,951)        

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 850,000         1,705,446                   1,705,446      1,035,089         

Local Capital 110,000         116,820         116,820         109,982            

Total Net Transfers 960,000         1,705,446                   116,820         1,822,266      1,145,071         

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,209,348)     (131,367)                     120,720         (10,647)         (576,880)           

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 13,352,955                 356,905         13,709,860    26,975,381       

Prior Period Adjustments

To Recognize Asset Retirement Obligation (12,688,641)      

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 13,352,955                 356,905         13,709,860    14,286,740       

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 13,221,588                 477,625         13,699,213    13,709,860       

2023 Actual

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Schedule of Capital Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4A (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Sites Buildings Equipment Vehicles Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost, beginning of year 6,088,418           227,783,110        8,870,039           1,579,837           98,444                3,039,001           247,458,849        

Prior Period Adjustments

To Recognize Asset Retirement Obligation 12,688,641          12,688,641          

Cost, beginning of year, as restated 6,088,418           240,471,751        8,870,039           1,579,837           98,444                3,039,001           260,147,490        

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Purchases from:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 742,930              291,966              1,034,896           

Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 149,561              23                       149,584              

Operating Fund 12,609                290,172              118,499              1,220,585           1,641,865           

Special Purpose Funds 63,581                63,581                

Transferred from Work in Progress 349,847              530,801              880,648              

-                          1,254,947           1,176,543           118,499              -                          1,220,585           3,770,574           

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 986,362              2,746                  52,285                422,988              1,464,381           

-                          -                          986,362              2,746                  52,285                422,988              1,464,381           

Cost, end of year 6,088,418           241,726,698        9,060,220           1,695,590           46,159                3,836,598           262,453,683        

Work in Progress, end of year 2,793,079           1,187,735           3,980,814           

Cost and Work in Progress, end of year 6,088,418           244,519,777        10,247,955          1,695,590           46,159                3,836,598           266,434,497        

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year 98,610,932          3,345,269           663,153              77,231                1,272,954           103,969,539        

Prior Period Adjustments

12,688,641          12,688,641          

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year, as restated 111,299,573        3,345,269           663,153              77,231                1,272,954           116,658,180        

Changes for the Year

Increase:  Amortization for the Year 5,395,351           896,513              163,772              14,460                687,560              7,157,656           

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 986,362              2,746                  52,285                422,988              1,464,381           

-                          986,362              2,746                  52,285                422,988              1,464,381           

Accumulated Amortization, end of year 116,694,924        3,255,420           824,179              39,406                1,537,526           122,351,455        

Tangible Capital Assets - Net 6,088,418           127,824,853        6,992,535           871,411              6,753                  2,299,072           144,083,042        

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Tangible Capital Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4B (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Buildings Equipment Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $

Work in Progress, beginning of year 384,116            489,958            -                       -                       874,074            

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 805,274            1,228,578         2,033,852         

Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 1,953,536         1,953,536         

2,758,810         1,228,578         -                       -                       3,987,388         

Decrease:

Transferred to Tangible Capital Assets 349,847            530,801            880,648            

349,847            530,801            -                       -                       880,648            

Net Changes for the Year 2,408,963         697,777            -                       -                       3,106,740         

Work in Progress, end of year 2,793,079         1,187,735         -                       -                       3,980,814         

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Bylaw Other Other Total

Capital Provincial Capital Capital

$ $ $ $

Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 106,022,900      10,476,722        952,901             117,452,523      

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 1,034,896          23                      149,561             1,184,480          

Transferred from Work in Progress 880,648             880,648             

1,915,544          23                      149,561             2,065,128          

Decrease:

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 4,849,316          400,551             70,976               5,320,843          

4,849,316          400,551             70,976               5,320,843          

Net Changes for the Year (2,933,772)         (400,528)            78,585               (3,255,715)         

Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 103,089,128      10,076,194        1,031,486          114,196,808      

Work in Progress, beginning of year 844,793             29,281               -                        874,074             

Changes for the Year

Increase

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Work in Progress 2,033,852          1,953,536          3,987,388          

2,033,852          1,953,536          -                        3,987,388          

Decrease

Transferred to Deferred Capital Revenue 880,648             880,648             

880,648             -                        -                        880,648             

Net Changes for the Year 1,153,204          1,953,536          -                        3,106,740          

Work in Progress, end of year 1,997,997          1,982,817          -                        3,980,814          

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 105,087,125      12,059,011        1,031,486          118,177,622      

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Schedule 4D (Unaudited)

MECC Other

Bylaw Restricted Provincial Land Other

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, beginning of year -                        62,602               1,192,581          -                        3,544                 1,258,727          

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 3,172,488          760,978             3,933,466          

Other 149,561             149,561             

Investment Income 1,100                 1,000                 2,100                 

Transfer project surplus to MECC Restricted (from) Bylaw (103,740)            103,740             -                        

3,068,748          104,840             761,978             -                        149,561             4,085,127          

Decrease:

Transferred to DCR - Capital Additions 1,034,896          23                      149,561             1,184,480          

Transferred to DCR - Work in Progress 2,033,852          1,953,536          3,987,388          

3,068,748          -                        1,953,559          -                        149,561             5,171,868          

Net Changes for the Year -                        104,840             (1,191,581)         -                        -                        (1,086,741)         

Balance, end of year -                        167,442             1,000                 -                        3,544                 171,986             

School District No. 63 (Saanich)
Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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To:   Finance, Facilities & Technology Committee Prepared By:  Jason Reid 
 Secretary Treasurer 

Subject:   Feeding Futures Date:  September 5, 2023 

Purpose and Background 

The purpose of this briefing note is to provide an update on the implementation of school food 
programs and to recommend approval of funding allocations to schools. 
In April 2023, the Ministry of Education and Childcare announced an investment of $214 
million over three years for school districts to create or expand local food programs throughout 
BC. The 2023/24 funding allocation for the Saanich school district is $862,717. 
In June 2023, we reported that we were developing criteria for a Request for Proposal to select 
a partner or partners to support schools in delivering food programs. However, while working 
in consultation with schools we concluded we were not ready to develop criteria that would 
sufficiently define vendor requirements while also providing the flexibility schools were 
looking for to meet their specific needs. 
Through discussions with other school districts and at the provincial level, we’ve also learned 
that provincially school districts vary significantly in the delivery of school meals programs. 
Many school districts already have centrally coordinated school meal programs in place that 
engage external partners to prepare and deliver meals to schools. These districts are now well 
positioned to simply expand these existing programs, or to redirect current funding allocations 
elsewhere. In contrast, in Saanich schools and in many school districts, food programs exist but 
have developed over time at the school level and are supported through a combination of 
school operating funding, PAC funding, and/or other external contributions. During 2022/23, 
Saanich schools were able to expand these programs using one-time funding received through 
the Student and Family Affordability Fund (SFAF)1. Some schools have expressed a 
preference to simply continue the programs that were implemented last year using the SFAF. 
Some schools have also noted a preference for preparing meals in-house due to the lower cost 
and greater flexibility, as compared to using an external partner. 

1 During the 2022/23 school year, the Saanich School District received $737,162 in one-time targeted 
funding to improve students access to nutritional food, and to directly offset costs to parents, guardians and 
students for supplies, field trips, clothing or other school related costs. 



 
 
 

One reason for the provincial inconsistency in school district food programs is variation in both 
the quantum and the use of CommunityLINK funding received by school districts2. In 2022/23, 
the Saanich School District received $440,482 in CommunityLINK funding, which was used 
primarily to fund Youth and Family Councillors (YFC) and other student support positions. 
Other school districts allocate less funding to counselling and instead allocated a portion of this 
funding to district food programs.  The quantum of these funding allocations to school districts 
also varies widely.  For example, the Victoria School District receives $203 in 
CommunityLINK funding per student FTE compared with $58 per student FTE in Saanich. 
Acknowledging the variation in the readiness of school districts to expand meal programs, 
senior ministry staff have advised school districts that 2023/24 should be a learning year where 
school districts take the time needed to consult appropriately and develop programs that will 
best meet the needs of their school communities. 
Last June we reported a tentative plan to allocate funding to create a 0.6 FTE District Support 
Teacher for food program coordination, however, a decision on program coordination will 
instead follow a review of school food program plans as discussed below. 
 

Next Steps 
 
In order for food programs to meet the unique needs of each school community, we propose 
that School Principals consult with their school community in the development of a Food 
Program Plan.  Each of these plans will be reviewed and approved by the Director of 
Instruction – Diversity and Inclusion to ensure each plan complies with policy/procedure and 
are consistent with overall program objectives.  
 
To provide direction in the development of food programs at the school level, Administrative 
Procedure 170 (Food Programs) has been developed (see attachment 1).  This new AP is 
included with this briefing as attachment 2 and will be included on the September 20th Board 
Meeting Agenda as an information item.  This new AP provides expectations with respect to 
food programs including program goals (nutrition, stigma free, etc), and food safety and 
compliance requirements.  
 
I am proposing that Feeding Future funding be allocated directly to schools at this time. In the 
short term this will allow schools to continue with the food initiatives implemented last year 
using SFAF, and it will also allow each school to develop their Food Program Plan knowing 
what their funding allocation will be going forward. The proposed allocations are presented in 
attachment 2. The funding allocations are differentiated reflecting socio-economic factors and 
our experience administering SFAF last year including the relative number of families served 
in each school. At this time, we are allocating $82,967 to district holdback. A portion of the 
holdback will likely be allocated to district coordination following review of school plans, with 
the residual being reallocated out to schools. 

                                                 
2 The Ministry provides CommunityLINK funding to all 60 school districts to support the academic 
achievement and social functioning of vulnerable students. Programs and services can include breakfast, 
lunch and snack programs, academic supports, counseling, youth workers and after-school programs 



 
 
 

 
Schools are requested to submit their food program plans by October 31st. After reviewing these 
plans, we will assess how schools can be best supported through district level procurement and 
central program coordination. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
That the proposed allocation of Feeding Future funding be approved. 
 
With respect,  

 
Jason Reid 
Secretary Treasurer 
 
Attachments: 1 - New Administrative Procedure 170 (Food Programs) 
   2 - Proposed Feeding Futures Funding Allocations  



 Attachment 1 – Draft Food Programs Administrative Procedure 
 
Administrative Procedure 170 – Food Programs 
 
Background 
 
The District is committed to creating educational environments that support students and their learning. 
The District acknowledges that when children are healthy they are better able to learn and that schools 
can be an important contributor to their overall health. 
 
The District also recognizes the importance of food and nutrition and that effective school Food 
Programs have the potential to improve student nutrition, academic progress, mental health, social 
functioning, and long term health. 
 
Procedures 
 

1. The Principal is responsible for the development and maintenance of the school Food Program.  
The Director of Instruction – Diversity and Inclusion, has responsibility for approving all school 
Food Programs. 

2. The development of menus for school Food Programs, including cafeterias, will be consistent 
with Provincial policy and guidance including the Guidelines for Food and Beverage Sales in BC 
Schools and the School Meal and School Nutrition Handbook. The goal of these programs is to 
increase student access to healthy foods, and in particular, for students who may be identified as 
nutritionally vulnerable. 

3. Food Programs will provide nutrition supports to students in a compassionate‐informed manner 
that respects the dignity of students and families and does not expose them to potential 
stigmatization. 

4. All Food Programs and food events must comply with applicable food safety standards including 
all requirements of the BC Health Act Food Premises Regulation. 

5. When accepting donated foods, it is essential to ensure that the food is both safe and nutritious. 
The acceptability of donated foods should be discussed with a local Island Health Environmental 
Health Officer. 

6. All school kitchens must obtain a permit to operate prior to beginning a school Food Program. A 
temporary permit may also be required for certain events. Guidance and an application package 
for a Permit to Operate can be obtained by contacting the local Health Protection & 
Environmental Services Location of Island Health. A permit is not required for foods prepared as 
part of an authorized curriculum. 

7. A caterer engaged for the delivery of a Food Program is required to adhere to this administrative 
procedure. 

 

Reference:   BC Health Act Food Premises Regulation 

    Guidelines for Food and Beverage Sales in BC Schools 

    School Meal and School Nutrition Handbook 

 

Approved: September 2023 

 
  



Attachment 2 - Proposed Feeding Futures Funding Allocations

Feeding Futures Forecasted Allocation
Allocation Enrolment per student

Brentwood Elementary 27,500                       350               78.57                
Cordova Bay Elementary 16,500                       330               50.00                
Deep Cove Elementary 16,500                       325               50.77                
Keating Elementary 25,000                       497               50.30                
KELSET Elementary 38,000                       365               104.11              
Lochside Elementary 45,000                       432               104.17              
Prospect Lake Elementary 19,250                       245               78.57                
Sidney Elementary 52,500                       395               132.91              
Total Elementary Allocation 240,250                    2,939           81.75                

Bayside Middle School 50,000                       590               84.75                
North Saanich Middle School 35,000                       385               90.91                
Royal Oak Middle School 44,500                       603               73.80                
Total Middle Allocation 129,500                    1,578           82.07                

Claremont Secondary 40,000                       989               40.44                
Parkland Secondary 30,000                       446               67.26                
Stellys Secondary 40,000                       748               53.48                
Total Seconday Supply Allocation 110,000                    2,183           50.39                
Secondary Staffing Allocation 200,000                    2,183           91.62                
Total Secondary Allocation 310,000                    2,183           142.01              

Alternate (ILC) 30,000                       215 139.53              
Online Learning (SIDES) 15,000                       400 37.50                
CDC/ALP 10,000                       
Strongstart Programs 15,000                       
Indigenous Education 30,000                       
District Holdback 82,967                       

Total Funding Allocated 862,717                    

Note that allocation of Feeding Futures Funding to existing secondary staffing budgets was
approved last spring in conjunction with adoption of the 23/24 Preliminary Budget.



 
 
 

 
 
To:   Finance, Facilities & Technology Committee Prepared By:  Jason Reid 

                          Secretary Treasurer 
 
Subject:  2024/26 Jordan’s Principle Application Date:  September 5, 2023 
 
 

 
Purpose 

The purpose of this briefing note is to provide background and information on Board resolutions 
required for a Jordan’s Principle application the District has made to increase speech language 
pathology services for Indigenous program students.  
 
What is Jordan’s Principle? 
 
Jordan’s Principle provides that where a government service is available to all other children, but a 
jurisdictional dispute regarding services to a First Nations child arises between Canada, a province, a 
territory, or between government departments, the government department of first contact pays for 
the service and can seek reimbursement from the other government or department after the child has 
received the service. It is a child-first principle meant to prevent First Nations children from being 
denied essential public services or experiencing delays in receiving them. 
 
Jordan’s Principle Application 
 
Recently the district successfully applied to Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) under Jordan’s Principle 
for multi-year grant for 4.3 FTE speech language pathologist positions with a total of $1.6 million across 
3 years.  
 
ISC has requested that the district provide certain documents to set up the funding agreement.  Those 
documents include Board resolutions as follows:  

• Resolution authorizing the Delegated Signing Authority 
• Resolution for Direct Deposit 

 
The first resolution authorizes the Secretary Treasurer to sign the funding agreement.  ISC noted that 
the funding agreement will be completed following receipt of the resolutions, but a template for the 
funding agreement can be viewed at this link. 
 

   
  

https://rcaanc-cirnac.gc.ca/eng/1669046929231/1669046947983


 
 
 

 
Staff Recommendations 

  
 That the Board approve the following resolutions by motion at the September 20, 2023 Regular Board 

meeting: 
  

Resolution 1 (see attachment 1): 
 
 That the Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich) approve Jason Reid, Secretary-Treasurer, 

to sign the Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) Master Funding Agreement and amendments on behalf of 
School District No. 63 (Saanich) for the Fiscal Year 2024-2026. 

  
Resolution 2 (see attachment 2) 

  
That the Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich) approve the allocation and direct deposit 
of funding from Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) to the School District No. 63 (Saanich) at 2125 Keating 
Cross Road, Saanichton, BC V8M 2A5, through banking services at:      

 
Coast Capital Savings 
201-7860 Wallace Drive 
Saanichton, BC  V8M 2H8 
 
Branch No.: 18920 
Institution No.: 809 
Account Number 21000115675  

   
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Jason Reid 
Secretary-Treasurer 
 
JR/klg 
 
Attachments:  1 – Resolution to enter into funding agreement 
 2 – Resolution to approve direct deposit 
 

 



 
Board of Education Resolution  

   
  
Meeting Date:  
September 20, 2023   

  

That the Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich) approve Jason Reid, Secretary-
Treasurer, to sign the Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) Master Funding Agreement and amendments 
on behalf of School District No. 63 (Saanich) for the Fiscal Year 2024-2026. 

  
WHEREAS: 
The undersigned hereby certifies this to be a true copy of the motion for the approval of the signing 
of the Master Funding Agreement approved by the Board of Education on this 20th day of September 
2023.  
          

          
Secretary-Treasurer Name     Secretary-Treasurer Signature   
          
          
     

 
 



 
Board of Education Resolution 

 

Meeting Date: 
September 20, 2023   
  
  

  
That the Board of Education of School District No. 63 (Saanich) approve the allocation and direct 
deposit of funding from Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) to the School District No. 63 (Saanich) at 
2125 Keating Cross Road, Saanichton, BC V8M 2A5, through banking services at:      
 
Coast Capital Savings 
201-7860 Wallace Drive 
Saanichton, BC  V8M 2H8 
 
Branch No.: 18920 
Institution No.: 809 
Account Number 21000115675   

  
WHEREAS: 
The undersigned hereby certifies this to be a true copy of the motion for the approval of the allocation 
and direct deposit of funding from ISC approved by the Board of Education on this 20th day of 
September 2023.  

          

          
Secretary-Treasurer Name     Secretary-Treasurer Signature   
          

 



 
 
 

 
 
To:   Finance, Facilities & Technology Committee Prepared By:  Jason Reid   
    Secretary Treasurer  
 
Subject:   ŚEŚIŚEJ Childcare Centre License Agreement Date:  September 5, 2023 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this briefing note is to recommend the committee’s and Board’s approval to enter 
into a licence agreement with Beacon Community Services for the operations of the ŚEŚIŚEJ 
Childcare Centre. 
Licence Agreement 
 
This license agreement (see attachment 1) was prepared by modifying the template agreement 
for childcare operators reflecting the following key changes: 
 

• Clause 2 – Agreement term of 15 years corresponding with the timeframe of our 
commitment to deliver the program as proposed in the Childcare BC New Spaces funding 
application (see attachment 2); 

• Clause 3 - License fee increases annually by $100 (about 2%) annually to account for 
cost inflation. The 2023/24 rate (per square foot) is consistent with other childcare licence 
rates. 

• Clause 7 – The operator agrees to operate the program consistent with the proposed 
program as submitted in the funding application to the Childcare BC New Spaces Fund. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
 
That the Board approve entering into the proposed license agreement with Beacon Community 
Services for the operation of the ŚEŚIŚEJ Childcare Centre. 
  

With respect, 

 
Jason Reid 
Secretary Treasurer 
  
JR/klg 
 
Attachments: 1 - Draft License Agreement 
   2 – Childcare BC New Spaces Funding Application 
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LICENSE OF OCCUPATION 
 
 
This LICENSE OF OCCUPATION is made effective as of the ___ day of _________, 2023. 
 
BETWEEN: 
  

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 63 (Saanich) 
2125 Keating Cross Road 
Saanichton, British Columbia, V8M 2A5 
(the “Licensor”) 

AND: 

 
BEACON COMMUNITY SERVICES 
9860 Third Street 
Sidney BC V8L 4R2 
(the “Licensee”) 
 

WHEREAS: 
 
A. The Licensor is the registered owner of the lands and premises having a civic address of 7420 
Veyaness Road, Saanichton, BC V8M 1V9 and legally described as: 
 
  PID 003-922-766 

Lot A, Section 8, Range 3 East, South Saanich District, Plan 17298 
(the “Lands”) 
 

B. Under the terms of a funding agreement (the “Funding Agreement”) between Her Majesty the 
Queen in right of the Province of British Columbia as represented by the Minister of Education and 
Childcare, a copy of which Funding Agreement is attached as Schedule “B”, the Ministry of Education 
agreed to grant capital funding to the Licensor to construct and provide childcare spaces on the Lands; 
 
C. The ŚEŚIŚEJ Childcare Centre is located on the Lands; 
 
D. The Licensee wishes to obtain, and the Licensor wishes to grant to the Licensee, a license (the 
“License”) to use and occupy the building and surrounding lands shown outlined in red on the plan 
attached hereto as Schedule “A”(the “License Area”), on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
1. Grant of License 

 
In consideration of and subject to the terms and conditions of this License, the Licensor hereby grants the 
License to the Licensee. The interest granted pursuant to this License constitutes a license only and does 
not constitute a lease or a sublease, nor create any other interest in land. 
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2. Term  
 
Subject to early termination or renewal as may be provided herein or otherwise agreed in writing, the 
License shall be for a term of 15 years, commencing on __________________ (the “Term”). 

The Term may be extended by letter of agreement between the Licensor and the Licensee.  Any such 
extension is subject to the terms and conditions of this License.  There is no binding obligation on the part 
of either the Licensor or the Licensee to renew or extend this License at the expiry of the Term.  

3. License Fees 
  
The Licensee will pay to the Licensor during the Term in lawful money of Canada, without any setoff, 
compensation or deductions whatsoever, the fees plus the license fees (the “License Fees”), calculated as 
follows: 
 
 (a) for the 12 months of the Term, the sum of $4,500.00 per month (the “Base Fee”), plus 

applicable taxes (including GST);  
 
 (b) for each subsequent 12 month period of the Term, the Base Fee shall be increased 

annually by $100.00 per month (plus applicable taxes, on each annual anniversary date 
of the commencement of the Term; 

 
The License Fees, plus any other additional costs set out in this License shall be payable monthly on the 
1st day of each and every month during the Term, with the first such payment due on the 1st day of the 
Term; 
 
The License Fees are inclusive of the following expenses paid by the Licensor: 

 
a) any taxes levied by any governmental authority on the License Area and on any buildings, 

improvements and fixtures thereon; 
 
b) the Licensor’s cost of insurance for the Lands and the improvements and fixtures located 

thereon, except that insurance the Licensee has agreed to provide; 
 
c) all the Licensor’s reasonable operating costs such as building and grounds maintenance, 

routine repairs, snow removal (parking lot/steps/ramp), water and electrical power and 
lighting expenses, waste removal, and administrative expenses; 

 
d) The Licensor’s cost of the future renewal of building systems and land improvements.  The 

Licensor acknowledges its intention, without creating any binding legal obligation, to 
allocate 50% of the License Fees to the operating costs of the License Area and 50.0% to 
a capital reserve account to be used to renew building systems and/or land improvements 
as facility components reach end of life. 

 
Interest will accrue on any overdue amounts owing under this License at the rate of 1.5% per month from 
the date due until paid.  
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4. Licensee Agreements 
 
The Licensee agrees with the Licensor: 
 

a) to pay the License Fees in advance as set out herein; 
 

b) to pay the cost to repair any damage to the License Area caused by the Licensee, 
excepting regular wear and tear; 

 
c) to bear all costs with respect to facility cleaning and telephone, internet service and 

similar utility and electronic services to the License Area; 
 

d) to leave the License Area and all improvements thereon in good repair; 
 
e) to pay any services contracted for or provided at the request of the Licensee; 
 
f) to pay any taxes and rates imposed in respect of the Licensee’s fixtures or property 

installed in the License Area;  
 
g) not to carry on any business or permit anything to be done or kept on or around the Lands 

that shall be deemed a nuisance on the License Area and the Licensor’s decision as to 
what constitutes a nuisance, if exercised in good faith, shall be final;   

 
h) that if the Term hereby granted shall be at any time seized or taken in execution or in 

attachment by any creditor of the Licensee, or if the Licensee shall make any assignment 
for the benefit of creditors, or becoming bankrupt or insolvent shall take the benefit of 
any legislation that may be in force for bankrupt or insolvent debtors, the Term shall 
immediately become forfeited and void;  

 
i) to use the License Area only for the operation of a fully licensed childcare program 

consistent with clause 7 (Childcare Program Requirements).  
 
j) to comply with all fire, safety, health and other governmental requirements applicable to 

its before and after school care facilities; 

k) to not accept enrolment of more than the legally permissible number of children at the 
License Area having regard to those governmental requirements, and requirements of 
School District No 63 (Saanich) referred to herein; 

l) to not erect any signs at the License Area without the written approval of the Licensor;  

m) to keep the License Area clean and tidy, maintaining a standard consistent with that set 
by the Licensor for the school facilities operated by it;  

n) to not register this License at the Land Title Office;  
 
o) at the expense of the Licensee, to ensure that any employee, agent, contractor or person 

retained by the Licensee to assist in performing its services shall successfully complete a 
criminal records check, and the Licensee agrees not to allow any person who has failed a 



Page 4 of 10 
 

criminal record check (as determined solely by the Licensor) to be in attendance at the 
License Area and to provide acceptable proof of successful completion of criminal record 
checks as the Licensor may require;  

 
p) at the expense of the Licensee, to comply with all laws, regulations and requirements 

applicable to the Licensee, or to the License Area, of any and all authorities and all notices 
in pursuance of same;  

 
q) to comply the with the legislation of the Ministry of Education and Childcare that prohibits 

the use of tobacco and smoking in all school district buildings and on school district lands 
(the “Smoking Ban”) and to use the Licensee’s best efforts to enforce the Smoking Ban on 
the License Area;  

 
r) upon request of the Licensor, to provide financial information the Licensor may require 

including but not limited to proposed budgets and profit and loss statements; and 
 
s) to comply with the requirements of this License including the childcare program 

requirements set out in Section 7. 
 

5. Licensor Agreements 
 
The Licensor agrees with the Licensee: 
 

a) for quiet enjoyment; and 
 

b) to permit the Licensee the reasonable use of water, hydro and sanitary/storm drains provided to 
the License Area. 

 
6. “AS IS” 
 
The Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the License Area is accepted by the Licensee on an “as is” 
basis and there is no representation or warranty by the Licensor as to the suitability or condition of the 
License Area for the permitted use set out herein. 
 
7. Childcare Program Requirements 
 
The Licensee agrees to operate a childcare program consistent with the program description as detailed 
in the funding application submitted by the Licensor to the Ministry of Children and Family Development 
(the “Funding Application”), a copy of which is attached as Schedule “C”, and consistent with the 
requirements of the Funding Agreement.  Consistent with the Funding Application, the Licensee and 
Licensor further agree to collaborate to deliver a program that integrates with Saanich School District 
programs where beneficial to create opportunities for learning and sharing and to facilitate a more 
seamless transition from early learning into K-12. 
 
Consistent with the Funding Application, the School Act and the related Childcare Order (Ministerial Order 
M326), the Licensee will deliver a childcare program that fosters Indigenous reconciliation in childcare 
and provides inclusive childcare.  
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An inclusive childcare program is one that is open to all students and that has the supports required for 
children with diverse needs, such that all students are supported in reaching their full potential. A 
childcare program that promotes Indigenous reconciliation in childcare is operated consistently with the 
following principles of the British Columbia Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act: (i) 
Indigenous peoples have the right, without discrimination, to the improvement of their economic and 
social conditions, including in the area of education; and (ii) Indigenous peoples have the right to the 
dignity and diversity of their cultures, traditions, histories and aspirations which shall be appropriately 
reflected in education. 
 
Failure of the Licensee to comply with the program requirements stated herein shall constitute a default 
under this License and entitle the Licensor to terminate the License in accordance with the termination 
provisions of this License. 
 
8. Insurance  
 
The Licensee during the Term of the License shall maintain, at the cost of the Licensee, the following: 
 

a) All risk property and boiler and machinery (if applicable) insurance in respect of the Licensee's 
inventory and stock in trade, furniture and fixtures and such other property in or forming part of 
the License Area (fixed improvements) to the full replacement cost value.  The property insurance 
is to include business interruption insurance for a twelve (12) month period including rents. The 
policy shall waive its rights of subrogation against the Licensor and name the Licensor as loss 
payee with respect to its interest in the fixed improvements (the Licensor agrees to make available 
such proceeds towards the repair or replacement of the insured property if this License is not 
terminated pursuant to any other provision hereof). 
 

b) General liability insurance including bodily injury and property damage on an occurrence basis 
with respect to the Licensee’s activities on the Premises and the business carried on or in or from 
the License Area and Licensee's use and occupancy thereof. The limit of such insurance shall be 
for not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) inclusive per occurrence or such higher limits 
as may be required by the Licensor from time to time. This insurance shall name the Licensor as 
an additional insured, shall include a cross liability clause and licensee legal liability insurance in 
the minimum amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00). 
 

c) Such other insurance as would be carried by a prudent operator of a Licensed Area similar in use, 
type and location. 
 

All such policies of insurance shall provide the Licensor with thirty (30) days notice of material change or 
cancellation and be placed with insurers licensed in British Columbia and with companies satisfactory to 
the Licensor and the Licensee. The Licensee shall provide the Licensor with evidence of all required 
insurance annually following renewal, in the form of an insurance certificate. If the Licensee fails to insure, 
or to file satisfactory proof of insurance promptly when so required, or should any such insurance not be 
approved by the Licensor and the Licensee does not rectify the deficiency within two (2) business days 
after notice by the Licensor, the Licensor, may without notice to the Licensee, purchase such insurance 
and recover any premiums paid therefore from the Licensee on demand. These certificates should be 
issued by the insurer or insurance broker of the Licensee and must contain the following information: 
name of the insurance company and the binder or policy number, name and address of the insured (user 
group), policy period (covering at least the period the License is in place), description of coverage, policy 
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limits, description of insured operations and location(s) and signature of authorized representative and 
date. 
 
The Licensor maintains general liability coverage as the owner of the License Area. The Licensee 
acknowledges that this policy does not protect the interests of the Licensee. The Licensee shall be 
responsible for securing its own property and the property of others in its care and control in the License 
Area, and for ensuring the safety of its staff and invitees, and hereby releases the Licensor from any and 
all liability whatsoever in respect thereof.   
 
9. Risk and Liability for Persons or Property 
 
The Licensee shall be responsible for securing its own property and the property of others in its care and 
control in the License Area, and for ensuring the safety of its staff and invitees, and hereby releases the 
Licensor from any and all liability whatsoever in respect thereof.  The Licensor shall not be responsible in 
any way for any injury to any person or for the loss of or damage to any property belonging to the Licensee 
or to the employees, agents, invitees or licensees of the Licensee while such person or persons or property 
is in or about the buildings on the License Area or any part of the License Area, and the Licensee covenants 
to indemnify the Licensor against all loss, costs, claims or demands in respect of any injuries, loss or 
damage referred to in this paragraph. 
 
The License Area and the fixtures and contents (including equipment) thereof at all times during the Term 
shall be at the risk of the Licensee and the Licensor shall not be bound to effect repairs or to compensate 
the Licensee for or indemnify the Licensee against any damages or expense which the Licensee shall suffer 
due to any cause whatsoever (including theft).  
 
10. Damage to License Area 
 
In the event that the License Area hereby demised or any part thereof shall at any time during the Term 
be damaged by fire or other casualty so as to render the same unfit for the purpose of the Licensee, then 
the License Fees hereby reserved and all remedies for recovering same shall be suspended and abated 
until the License Area at the option or the Licensor have been repaired or made fit for the purpose of the 
Licensee; provided, that the Licensor shall not be bound to rebuild the License Area, the decision as to 
which shall be in the sole discretion of the Licensor, and if the Licensor elects not the rebuild the License 
Area, this License and all obligations of the Licensor and the Licensee under it shall forthwith terminate. 
 
11. Damage by Licensee  

 
The Licensee shall pay the cost of any damage to any property of the Licensor arising from the use of the 
License Area or the Licensor’s property by the Licensee or its employees, agents, invitees or licensees. 
Without limiting the foregoing, the Licensee shall reimburse the Licensor for costs incurred by the Licensor 
in making good any damage caused to the Premises or any part thereof as a result of the negligence or 
willful act or omission of the Licensee, its employees, agents, invitees or licensees or other persons from 
time to time in or about the Premises.  
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12. Indemnity 
 
The Licensee shall indemnify and save harmless the Licensor (which indemnity shall survive the expiry or 
sooner termination of this License) from any and all liabilities, damages, costs, claims, suits, or actions, 
including all costs and actual legal fees and disbursements incurred, in connection with: 

 
a) any default under any term of this License by the Licensee; 
 
b) any act or omission of the Licensee; 
 
c) any damage to property while said property is in or about the License Area; or 
 
d) any injury to any licensee, invitee, agent or employee of the Licensee, including death 

resulting at any time therefrom, occurring in or about the License Area; 
 

except to the extent such results from the wrongful act or failure to act or negligence of the Licensor or 
persons for whose actions the Licensor is lawfully responsible.  
 
13. Termination 
 
If the Licensee is in default in the performance of any obligation hereunder and such default has not been 
cured within thirty (30) days after delivery of written notice from the Licensor to the Licensee to cure such  
default or, if such default is not curable within the said thirty (30) day period, and that steps have not 
been taken to cure such default, the Licensor will be entitled to terminate this License upon written notice 
to the Licensee. If such written notice is given, the Licensee will surrender and vacate the License Area at 
or before the end of the month in which such notice is given.  
 
14. Licensor Obstruction  
 
When necessary by reason of accident or other cause or in order to make repairs, alterations or 
improvements in or relating to the License Area, the Licensor may cause such temporary obstruction of 
the License Area and any areas licensed to the Licensee hereunder as may be reasonably necessary and 
may interrupt or suspend the supply of electricity, water and other services to the License Area until such 
repairs, alterations or improvements are completed. 
 
If the temporary obstruction exceeds one day in duration and negatively impacts the revenues of the 
Licensee, License Fees will abate by the lessor of: 
 

a) The License Fees attributable to the duration of the temporary obstruction less one day; or 
b) The amount of revenues lost attributable to the duration of the temporary obstruction less one 

day. 
 
15. Licensor Access 
 
The Licensor shall be entitled to enter, inspect and otherwise have access to the License Area throughout 
the Term, and upon the expiry or sooner determination of the Term, or of any renewal thereof, the 
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Licensee shall forthwith peaceably vacate and cease occupancy of the License Area without notice from 
the Licensor. 
 
16. Assignment or Subletting  

 
This License is personal to the Licensee and may not be assigned or sublicensed, including by succession 
or operation of law, except with the prior written consent of the Licensor, which may be withheld in the 
absolute discretion of the Licensor.  No assignment or sub-licensing will relieve the Licensee from its 
obligations under this License. Any change from the present control of the Licensee shall constitute an 
assignment of the License requiring the prior written consent of the Licensor.  
 
17. Alterations, Installations and Fixtures 

 
The Licensee shall not make any alterations, repairs, installations, removals or improvements in or about 
the License Area or the improvements thereon without the Licensor's prior written consent, in the 
Licensor’s absolute discretion, as to suitability and acceptability and only after having submitted adequate 
plans and specifications thereof to the Licensor. Such consent shall be at the discretion of the Licensor, 
and if consent is given, all work shall be done in good and workmanlike manner to a standard acceptable 
to the Licensor. All such alterations and improvements which are not capable of removal as Licensee 
fixtures as hereinafter provided shall be and be deemed to become part of the License Area and as such 
the property of the Licensor upon the installation thereof. 
 
At the expiry or other termination of the License, all improvements erected or placed upon the License 
Area by the Licensee and all fixtures in or about the License Area placed by the Licensee shall be removed 
by the Licensee, provided that the Licensee shall make good any repairs occurring to the License Area by 
reason of such removal. The Licensor shall have the right upon the termination of this License by effluxion 
of time or otherwise to require the Licensee by written notice to remove the chattels and equipment 
located on the License Area and if the Licensee does not remove its personal property forthwith after 
written demand, the Licensor shall not be responsible for any loss or damage to such property. 
 
18. Liens and Encumbrances 

 
The Licensee covenants to forthwith discharge any liens and other encumbrances at any time filed against 
the License Area arising by reason of any work done or materials supplied at the direction of the Licensee, 
and to keep the License Area free from any and all liens and other encumbrances, arising as a result of its 
acts or omission, and if the Licensee fails to do so, the Licensor may, but shall be under no obligation, to 
pay into court, the amount required to obtain a discharge of any such lien in the name of the Licensee 
and any amount so paid together with all disbursements and costs in respect of such proceedings on a 
solicitor and client basis shall be forthwith due and payable by the Licensee to the Licensor as additional 
license fees. The Licensee shall allow the Licensor to post and keep posted on the License Area any notices 
that the Licensor may desire to post under the provisions of the Builders Lien Act or any other legislation. 
 
19. No Registration 
 
The Licensee shall not in any circumstances apply to register this License or any other interest or notice 
of interest against or in respect of the License Area or any part thereof. The Licensee further covenants 
not to mortgage or otherwise encumber this License or any interest hereunder.  
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20. Overholding 
 

If the Licensee continues to occupy the License Area with the express consent of the Licensor after the 
expiry of the Term of this License without any further written agreement, the Licensee shall be a monthly 
licensee on the terms and conditions herein set out.  
 
21. Expropriation 
 
During the term of this License, if the whole of the License Area shall be expropriated, or otherwise taken 
by virtue of any power or authority having the power for such acquisition or condemnation, then the term 
of this License shall be deemed terminated from the date of entry of such authority without any liability 
to the Licensor or recourse by the Licensee to the Licensor whatsoever including, without limitation, for 
any costs or damages. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the Licensor nor the Licensee or both from 
recovering damages from such authority for the value of their respective interests or for such other 
damages and expenses allowed by process of law. 
 
22. Dispute Resolution  

 
If a dispute arises out of or relates to this contract, or the breach thereof, and the dispute cannot be 
settled by negotiations between the Parties, the Parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute 
by mediation. If the Parties are unable to resolve all issues in dispute in the mediation, the Parties agree 
that the remaining issues in dispute shall be determined by arbitration in accordance with the rules of the 
Vancouver International Arbitration Centre, or either Party may without further notice, commence 
litigation. The Parties agree to share equally the costs of the mediation and arbitration, which costs will 
not include costs incurred by a Party for representation by counsel.  
 
23. General 
 
a) Time shall be of the essence hereof. 
 
b) This License contains the entire agreement between the Parties. There are no other conditions, 

representations or warranties, express or implied, and no amendment hereto shall be valid unless 
in writing signed by the Parties. 

 
c) This License and all the covenants and provisos and agreements herein contained shall enure to 

the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties hereto and each of their respective heirs, 
executors, administration, successors and permitted assigns. 

 
d) The Parties hereto acknowledge that this License will be governed and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the Province of British Columbia. 
 
e) Any notice to be given hereunder shall be sufficiently given if mailed in Canada by registered mail, 

postage prepaid, to the appropriate Party at the address first set out above for that Party, or such 
other address as may be designated by written notice given by that Party to the other Party in 
accordance with this provision. Any notice mailed as aforesaid shall be conclusively deemed to 
have been received on the third business day following the day on which such notice is mailed as 
aforesaid.   
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f) The headings in this License have been inserted for reference and as a matter of convenience only 

and in no way define, limit or enlarge the scope or meaning of this License or any provision hereof.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have duly executed and delivered this License effective as of the date 
first above written. 

 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 63 (Saanich) 

 

            By:                                                                                         
Name: Jason Reid                                       
Secretary-Treasurer 

 

                                                                                                          
            Signature of Witness                                  Date of Signing 
 
                                                                               
            Witness Name  
 
 

[NAME OF LICENSEE] 

 

            By:                                                                                         
Authorized Signatory                                  Date of Signing 
Name: _________________________________________ 
Title:  
 
 

                                                                                                          
            Signature of Witness                                  Date of Signing 
 
                                                                               
            Witness Name  
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The information collected on this form is collected under the authority of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (FOIPPA) and the Child Care BC Act (SBC 2001, c. 4) 
and will be used for the purpose of administering the Childcare BC New Spaces Fund. Personal information is protected from unauthorized use and disclosure in accordance with the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Any questions or concerns about the collection of this information should be directed to the Director, Child Care Capital Programs, 
PO Box 9788 Stn Prov Govt, Victoria BC V8W 9S5, Phone: in Greater Victoria: 250 385-6501. Elsewhere in BC, Toll Free: 1 888 338-6622, Fax: 250 387-2997.

Capitalized terms in this Application Form will have the meaning ascribed to them in the Childcare BC New Spaces Funding Guidelines 
(“Guidelines”) unless otherwise stated.

1.0 Applicant Information
Legal Name

School District No. 63 (Saanich)

Mailing Address (all correspondence and payments will be mailed to this address):

2125 Keating Cross Road

City/Town

Central Saanich

Province

BC
Postal Code

V8M 2A5

Phone Number

(250) 652-7300

Email Address

Organizational Type (select one): 

Local Government/
Municipality

School Board Health Authority
Public Post-Secondary 
Institution

Indigenous 
Government

Not-for-Profit (Society)
Indigenous Not-for-
Profit (Society)

1.1 Project Contact Information
Project Contact Name

Jason Reid

Position/Title

Secretary Treasurer

Email

jreid@saanichschools.ca

Phone

(250) 652-7304

Fax

Authorized Signing Authority Name (if different)

Jason Reid

Position/Title

Secretary Treasurer

Email

jreid@saanichschools.ca

Phone

(250) 652-7304

2.0 Project Components

2.1 Facility Information
Child Care Facility Name (if known)

[Facility Name to be determined]

New or Expanded Child Care Facility Physical Address (if known)

7420 Veyaness Road

City/Town

Central Saanich

Province

BC
Postal Code

V8M 1V9

Facility Phone

School District Catchment 

School District No. 63 (Saanich)

Is your proposed facility located on reserve? Yes No

Are you relocating a current facility in this proposed project?      Yes No

If yes, are you creating/adding new child care spaces at the new 
location?

Yes No
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2.2 Child Care Space Information

Type of New Spaces to Be Created

Total 
Number of 
New Spaces

Total 
Number of 
Retained 
Spaces at 
Existing 
Facility (if 
applicable) Days of the Week Hours of Operation

Group Child Care (Under 36 Months) 12

Sun Mon Tues

Wed Thurs Fri

Sat

From 7:30am

To 4:30pm

Group Child Care (30 Months to School Age) 48

Sun Mon Tues

Wed Thurs Fri

Sat

From 7:30am

To varies - see p

Group Multi-Age Child Care

Sun Mon Tues

Wed Thurs Fri

Sat

From

To

Group Child Care (School Age) 24

Sun Mon Tues

Wed Thurs Fri

Sat

Before School:

From

To

After School:

From 3:00pm

To 7:30pm

School Age on School Grounds 

Sun Mon Tues

Wed Thurs Fri

Sat

Before School:

From

To

After School:

From

To

Will the facility regularly offer extended daily hours of child care(before 6 a.m.; after 7 p.m.; overnight)? Yes No

Will the facility operate on statutory holidays?   Yes No

For Group School Age and School Age on School Grounds spaces, will spaces operate on days of school closure? Yes No N/A

Please Note: For information on group sizes and staffing ratios in regards to Child Care Licensing Regulations, please refer to Appendix E of 
the Community Care and Assisted Living Act, Child Care Licensing Regulation. 

2.3 Project Summary
Summarize your Project; provide information that speaks to the qualities of the project/facility.  
Please describe (a) a summary of your facility build/renovation and (b) an overview of the type and quality of child care program you will be 
creating. Please keep your answer to no more than 750 words. 
 
The White Road property was donated in 1873 with the condition that the property be held in perpetuity and used for public 
school purposes. The property was the location of "South Saanich School" open from 1873 until 1913 when the school was 
replaced by Saanichton School and Keatings School. Following a comprehensive community consultation, in October 2018 
the Board of Education approved the White Road Committee’s recommendation to complete a review considering the 
benefits and feasibility of creating a Nature Based Early Learning Centre on the White Road Property. For more information 
on the property and consultation process refer to the attached White Road Consultation Final Report. 
 
In October 2021, the Board of Education approved submission of a funding application to the BC Childcare New Spaces 
Fund to develop a childcare and early learning program in partnership with Beacon Community Services. 
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The vision is a nature based early learning and childcare program that creates 84 childcare spaces and provides additional 
support programs for families. The childcare spaces created include infant toddler care (12 spaces) from 7:30pm to 4:30pm, 
full time group care (ages 3-5) from 7:30am to 4:30pm (24 spaces), five hour group care (ages 3 to 5) from 7:30am to 
12:30pm (24 spaces), and after school child care (24 spaces) from 3:00pm to 7:30pm. If there is demand in the community, 
the facility may also provide childcare over extended hours, and possibly overnight care. 
 
Five hour group care (ages 3-5) and extended after school care are intended to provide flexible options for parents. The 
importance of flexible options was identified in the Central Saanich Child Care Action Plan survey results (see page 34). 
Beacon is also experiencing demand for part-time childcare. About half of requests received for school age care are for after-
school care only. Beacon also serves many families for which 5 hour group care (3-5) would align better with their needs 
(there are few 5 hour group care spaces available and many families pay for full time care when they only need 5 hours or 
less). If necessary, the 5 hour group care (ages 3-5) would also be extended (up to an hour or so) for some spaces to meet 
the particular needs of the families enrolled. Extended after school care is intended to meet the needs of parents requiring 
care into the evening in order to balance work or other commitments including balancing education with work. Extended after 
school care will also facilitate parents participating in Beacon’s parent education and support programs (as described in 
section 6.2) to be offered at the White Road facility and at nearby Beacon facilities including Peninsula Early Years Centre.  
 
Additional co-located family support programs (as described in section 6.2) will include programming for early years and 
young parents, counselling services and other family support programs. The program design will be fully inclusive and 
accessible and is intended to serve priority populations including:  
 
• low income families, 
• children with support needs, 
• Indigenous children and families, 
• families new to Canada, and 
• young parents. 
 
In addition to evening programs (after 4:30 pm), the proposed flexible childcare options also allow for delivery of family 
support programs during the day (between 1pm and 3pm when one childcare studio is available). 
 
Beacon Community Services delivers extensive programming on the Saanich Peninsula to support children and families 
including childcare, counselling and other mental health supports, and education/support programs for parents. SD63 
(Saanich) and Beacon Community Services have a long and successful partnership in supporting children and families 
through several programs including the Peninsula Early Years Centre and the Young Parent Program located at Saanichton 
ILC, and the Strongstart program at Sidney Elementary. The school district and Beacon have also recently developed a new 
community services partnership at SD63's Children’s Development Centre. The White Road project is an opportunity to 
expand upon and leverage the success of these existing programs and also Beacon Community Services’ capacity to 
support families in need. 
 
The vision for the early learning programming is to integrate with school district programs where beneficial to create 
opportunities for learning and sharing and to facilitate a more seamless transition from early learning into K-12. Through a 
nature-based program rooted in W̱SÁNEĆ ways of knowing and being, children will establish a sense of community, place 
and belonging leading to smooth transitions into future education. It is essential for children that live, learn and play on the 
land of the W̱SÁNEĆ people to gain knowledge of their ways of knowing and being and to be exposed to the SENĆOŦEN 
language.  Woven through the fabric of the program would be the First Peoples Principles of Learning, by engaging with local 
W̱SÁNEĆ elders and educators to ignite an understanding of indigenous perspectives within the program. 
 
The White Road property is a forested lot and the plan is to retain as many trees as possible and to maximize the outdoor 
space suitable for play and learning. As shown in the attached concept design, the proposed building includes 3 separate 
childcare studios. The school district has submitted a rezoning application with the District of Central Saanich to rezone from 
RE-2 Rural Estate to P-1A Institutional for the purpose childcare. 

3.0 Child Care Build

3.1 Build Information

Indicate whether the proposed project is intending to:

Create a new child care facility Expand an existing child care facility
Purchase equipment only to create/add new child care 
spaces

For projects proposing to expand an existing child care facility, please provide the Community Care and Assisted Living Act licence (please 
attach copy of each licence).
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Are you building a new building in which to house the facility? Yes No

If yes, what type of building: 

Modular

Portable

Standalone Building

Other (please describe):

Are you renovating an existing building? Yes No

If yes, what type of building:

School

Community Centre

Existing child care 
building (standalone)

Commercial Space

Other (please describe):

Indicate the primary material to be used in this build:

Wood

Steel

Concrete

Brick

Other (please describe):

Identify the build standards to which the project will be constructed (if any):

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED)

Canadian Standards Association (CSA)

ASTM International

Other (please describe):

Please attach proposed floor plans/conceptual drawings. Submitted plans and conceptual drawings must include m2/ft2 and must meet or 
exceed the minimum space requirements set out in the Child Care Licensing Regulation. Please indicate which rooms will be used for each 
child care group and, where applicable, please include a room/outdoor space rotation schedule.

3.2 Accessibility 
Describe the accessibility standards to which the facility will be constructed (e.g., wheelchair ramps, wide pathways between furniture, hand 
rails at stairs and in bathrooms, accessible play structures, inclusive bathroom design, considerations for children with sensory challenges). 
Please include any information on alignment with universal design guidelines.
 
 
The facility will be fully accessible with wheelchair ramps, wide pathways between furniture, single level design, barrier free 
washrooms with handrails, and inclusive bathroom design. The building design also reflects considerations for children with 
sensory challenges including appropriate lighting and flexible space. The facility is centrally located on the Saanich 
Peninsula.

3.3 Facility Ownership

Land and/or Facility Space is:

Owned by the Applicant  Rented/Leased by the Applicant 

As per the mandatory documents, please provide a copy of your lease agreement or proof of ownership. If the applicant is a First Nations 
Government on reserve, proof of ownership is not required. 
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If rented/leased, please describe the terms of the rental/lease agreement (length of lease must meet your commitment period). If the rented/
leased facility is located on reserve, please provide a letter of support or endorsement from the Nation. 

The property is owned by School District No. 63 (Saanich).

3.4 Build Experience
How many years of experience does the Applicant or designated project management team/contracting team have in managing Capital Build 
projects?

None

Less than 1 year

1 or more years managing single capital build projects

5 or more years managing multiple capital build projects

Does this include child care specific design/build experience? Yes No

Ensuring your response reflects the length of experience indicated above, summarize the Applicant’s or designated project management/
contracting teams’ experience in managing Capital Build projects.   
If your organization has less than one year experience managing Capital Build projects, please explain any reasons for why. 
 
The Saanich School District has over 20 facilities and, at any given time, is managing several significant capital projects 
including siesmic upgrades, expansions and building replacements. District staff have well over 5 years experience in 
managing significant capital projects including: facility design, compliance with licensing/zoning/municipal requirements, 
managing project timelines and budget, and managing risks and unforeseen circumstances. 
 
In 2020, the school district managed childcare expansion projects (funded by the Childcare BC New Spaces Fund) on three 
school sites: Cordova Bay Elementary, Lochside Elementary, and Sidney Elementary. In 2019, the district managed a 
childcare space expansion project on the Keating Elementary site on behalf of Keating Out of School Care (KOSC) (funded 
by the Childcare Capital Funding Program).

3.5 Co-Location

Will your facility be co-located with other community/family services, including expanding an existing centre? Yes No

If Yes, with what organization:

K-12 school grounds/Board of Education affiliated Existing licensed child care spaces Aboriginal Head Start spaces

Other community amenities (please explain):

Being a multifaceted community association founded in 1974, Beacon offers a vast array of readily available supports 
and services for those in need. These services are offered in a professional manner with attention to respect and ethical 
best practices for those involved. 
 
Programming and supports include but are not limited to: support and educational programs for parents (including 
specific programs for young parents), family and individual wellness programs, special needs information and resources, 
addictions awareness and counselling support, food security programs, grief and loss counselling, and Fetal Alcohol 
Spectrum (FAS) support. These programs will be tailored to need and be readily available on site using the space when 
not in use for childcare programs. 
 
Beacon is well connected with other established community partners who further assist with resources, assessment 
knowledge, and access to additional supports to aid a child's growth, development and healthy identity. These partners 
include, but are not limited to the Queen Alexandra Centre, the Victoria Native Friendship Centre, and the Cridge Centre.

3.6 Municipal Bylaw Requirements

I on behalf of the Applicant by checking this box hereby certify that all necessary permits have been or will be obtained in order to 
complete the child care project.

I on behalf of the Applicant by checking this box hereby certify that all necessary by-laws have been or will be reviewed in order to 
complete the child care project.
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4.0 Child Care Operations

4.1 Child Care Operator

Will the Facility Licensee (Operator) be different than the Funding Applicant? Yes No (if No, proceed to Section 4.2)

If yes, have you confirmed your partnering operator? Yes No

If yes, confirm the partnering operator type.  
Please note, the partnering operator is expected to be a not-for-profit or public operator:

Public Not-for-profit For-Profit

Please provide confirmation of your partnership per the mandatory documents list (see application resource).

If you are partnering with a for-profit child care operator, please provide an explanation/justification.

N/A

If you have not yet secured an operator, do you commit to securing a public or not-for-profit operator? Yes No

If you do not yet have an operating partner in place, please include information on your plan to secure an operating partner.

N/A

4.2 Operator Experience

How many years of experience does the operator (Applicant or partnering operator), have in operating licensed child care facilities?

Operator has not yet been identified

Less than 1 year of experience

1 – 4 years of experience operating a single licensed facility

4 or more year of experience operating a single licensed facility

3 or more years of experience operating multiple licensed facilities simultaneously

If the operator has not yet been identified, do you commit to securing an operator with at least 1 year of experience? Yes No

Ensuring your response reflects the length of experience indicated above, summarize the Applicant’s experience in operating a licensed 
child care facility. If the operator is different from the Applicant, please include information on the partner’s operating experience.

 
Beacon Community Services has delivered licensed childcare on the Saanich Peninsula for over 30 years and currently 
delivers multiple programs including Infant and Toddler Care, Group Care (30 months to school age), and Out-of-School-
Care (school age). Many of these programs are delivered in partnership with School District No. 63 (Saanich).  
 
Beacon offers a vast array of readily available supports and services for those in need. Beacon leverages these community 
support programs and partnerships to provide wrap around support services for families accessing childcare (as described in 
sections 3.5 and 6.2). 
 
Two specific programs that integrate wrap around support with childcare are Beacon’s Peninsula Early Years Centre and the 
Young Parent Program at the TEAM Childcare Centre, both located at SD63’s Individual Learning Centre on Mount Newton 
Crossroad. 
 
At the Peninsula Early Years Centre, families find comfort and encouragement, as well as important resources and supports 
that help build a strong foundation for young children – so they get the strongest start possible in life. Beacon’s dedicated 
team of early years professionals supports families with: 
 
• Child development information and assessment tools 
• Assistance with connecting to health services and early intervention support 
• Parent support and connections 
• Assistance to get child care, housing & other resources 
• Emergency food and other practical supports 
• Assistance through Outreach/Resource Workers 
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The Young Parent Program supports young parents in graduating by providing quality childcare and additional wrap around 
support through the Peninsula Early Years Centre. The TEAM Childcare Centre won a 2018 Child Care Award of Excellence 
for Leadership in Inclusive Practices (press release included as attachment). 
 
Peninsula Connections for Early Childhood, the Saanich Peninsula Early Years Table, is sponsored and chaired by Beacon 
Community Services. A network of dedicated people representing services, agencies and volunteers across the Peninsula 
meet monthly to coordinate efforts to support the healthy growth and development of young children (0-6), and their families 
and to advocate for their well-being.

4.3 Operating Quality

Do you/will you implement components (or all) of the Early Learning Framework (ELF) in your program?

Yes

No

Operator not yet identified; Applicant commits to ensuring selected operator will implement components (or all) of the ELF into the 
program

Do you/will you use any quality or environmental assessment tools?

Yes

No

Operator not yet confirmed; Applicant commits to ensuring selected operator will implement quality or environmental assessment tools 
into the program

Please identify:

BC Quality Assessment Standard

LOVIT Way/Program Evaluation Process

AQI (City of Toronto)

StrongStartBC’s Reflecting on Quality Tool

The Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS)

Caregiver Interaction Scale (CIS)

Program Administration Scale (PAS)

ECERS-R -ITERS-R – FCCERS-R – SACERS

The Early Learning and Care Assessment for Quality Improvement (ELCAQI)

The Preschool Program Quality Assessment Instrument (PQA)

Observational Record of the Caregiving Environment (ORCE; NICHD Early Child Care Research Network

Other (e.g. Questionnaires, interviews, or self-reporting instruments) Please explain:

Parent interviews and questionnaires

4.4 Inclusion

Please provide a copy of your inclusion policy/your operating partner’s inclusion policy.

Your policy should demonstrate an understanding of what inclusion is, and how your facility will aim to create a fully inclusive child care 
setting that allows children of all abilities to participate meaningfully.  

If you do not have an operating partner in place, do you commit to ensuring your operating partner will develop 
an inclusion policy?

Yes No
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4.5 Staffing
Please describe the Operator’s staffing plan, including any recruitment and retention plans, such as professional development opportunities, 
wages, and benefits, etc. Please ensure your staffing plan considers the licence types for the spaces you will be creating and the priority 
populations (Section 6.0) you may be serving, as appropriate.  
 
If you do not have an operating partner identified, you are not required to provide information on an Operator’s staffing plan.

  
Beacon Community Services has a long history as a quality employer and acknowledged leader in delivering quality child 
care services. In addition to competitive wages and benefits, Beacon also implements a number of recruitment and retention 
strategies (see below) to secure quality qualified employees.  In addition to these strategies, the nature of this program and 
facility, including its location, will be desirable for staff drawing quality applicants. 
 
In addition to offering a variety of childcare options, Beacon will deliver other family support programs at the White Road 
facility complementing existing programs at other nearby facilities including the Peninsula Early Years Centre on Mount 
Newton Cross Road. This variety of programing at the White Road facility and at nearby facilities provides flexible 
employment options for staff. Staff can choose to work part-time or full time, and can work part time in childcare and part-time 
in delivering other support services, such as educational programs for parents. 
 
Recruitment strategies: 
• Posting within the CRD and Greater Victoria area 
• Offering competitive wages in the not for profit market 
• Offering a comprehensive and excellent extended benefits including a wide range of dental and medical coverage. 
• Employer matching up to 6% on RSP’s contributions 
• Training & Education opportunities 
 
Retention strategies: 
• Staff feel valued, and heard as a result of our inclusive approach 
• Opportunities for regular wage increases 
• Participation in government funded wage enhancement opportunities WE-ECE 
• Offer collaborative environments that promote growth and education in the ECE field.  Training includes Supported 
Childcare training from the Queen Alexandra Centre, and varied training opportunities through CCRR,  ECEBC, Southern 
Vancouver Island Child Care Association, and ROSCO (Regional Out of School Care Operators). 
• Training in cultural understanding and in support of Indigenous Education 
• Training to support inclusive childcare for children with diverse support needs. 
• Experience and ability to offer practicum opportunities that lead to employment.  
 
While the market for Early Childhood Educators is challenging, we are confident in our staffing plan to ensure this important 
program is successful. 

4.6 Monthly Parent Fees

I, on behalf of the Applicant, by checking this box, hereby certify that all spaces that receive funding through the New Spaces Fund, I will 
apply and enrol in Child Care Operating Funding (CCOF), the Child Care Fee Reduction Initiative (CCFRI), and Early Childhood 
Educator Wage Enhancement (ECE-WE), where eligible and approved for, and in principle agree to participate where eligible and 
feasible in any future BC Government operating funding initiatives. Please note that CCFRI policy requires new and modified facilities to 
set their fees in line with other local providers delivering the same type of care. See CCFRI Funding Guidelines for additional information.
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5.0 Community Need

5.1 Community Child Care Plan

Does your application include the submission of a community child care plan or child care needs assessment? Yes No

If yes, please describe how your application and the spaces to be created meet the child care needs identified in the plan/needs 
assessment. Please provide the plan, quotes/page numbers or screenshot attachments to support this information. 
 
If no, please describe how you have considered community need when preparing your project and provide other documentation that 
demonstrated community need.

 
The Central Saanich Childcare Inventory & Action Plan (attached), has identified the need for 651 additional childcare 
spaces. This estimated need will also increase as the population continues to grow. The greatest need for spaces is for 
school age, followed by ages 3-5, and finally infant toddler. The plan also identifies flexible childcare options as a priority for 
families. 
 
This plan includes as a recommended action that Central Saanich work with SD63 (Saanich) to support the proposed 
development of a childcare facility on the "White Road" property.

5.2 Community Need & Engagement

Please identify your community engagement activities that confirm the need for child care at your facility’s proposed location:

Conducted surveys of parents and/or child care operators

Interviews with parents and/ or child care providers

Previous municipal/community engagement demonstrate support and need for child care

Hosted/presented at community town halls/open house on child care needs

None

Other: (please explain)

Beacon Community Services has delivered childcare programs on the Saanich Peninsula for over 30 years and reports 
an increasing trend in the deficit of available spaces relative to community demand.

Please attach evidence of engagement activities, if available.

6.0 Priority/Underserved Populations

6.1 Requirements

I, on behalf of the Applicant by checking this box, hereby certify that all spaces that receive funding through the New Spaces Fund will be 
open to all children and families, including those who receive the Affordable Child Care Benefit.

6.2 Community Priority Populations Served
The populations you are serving should reflect community need and demographics. Include information on the priority/underserved 
populations your child care spaces will serve. Please note, you are not required to serve all of the priority populations. For each population 
ensure you explain the service and/or programming, speak to the facility policies, aspects of child care programming, partnered services you 
will collaborate with, or parent involvement. See the Application Resource for more information.

Will the proposed facility provide child care programming to Indigenous children and families? Yes No Don't know

Describe the services, programming, staff training, and/or community partnerships provided to support children and families who self-identify 
as Indigenous served by your program.

Beacon will deliver nature inspired programs that explore the surrounding natural environment including Indigenous 
teachings, SENĆOŦEN language teaching, and cultural understanding. Woven through the fabric of the program will be the 
First Peoples Principals of Learning, by engaging with local W̱SÁNEĆ elders and educators to ignite an understanding of 
Indigenous perspectives within the program. 
 
The proposed program at White Road will build upon the success of Indigenous programming in existing Beacon childcare 
facilities, which includes Indigenous teachings, SENĆOŦEN language teaching, and cultural understanding. Staff will receive 
training in cultural understanding and in support of Indigenous Education.  
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SD63 (Saanich) and Beacon Community Services will collaborate to leverage existing indigenous programing and community 
connections to infuse meaningful indigenous content. Beacon has existing partnerships with local First Nations providing 
programs for early years and to support parents. School District No. 63 (Saanich) strives to infuse Indigenous content in the 
early years for all children in partnership with local First Nations.  It is essential for children that live, learn and play on the 
land of the W̱SÁNEĆ people to gain knowledge of their ways of knowing and being and to be exposed to the SENĆOŦEN 
language. 

Will the proposed facility provide child care programming that is inclusive of children with support needs? Yes No Don't know

Describe the services, programming, staff training, and/or community partnerships provided to include children with support needs in your 
program.

The program will be fully inclusive with the necessary supports for children and families.  Beacon hires and retains staff with 
the ECE Special Needs/Inclusive Practices certificate, and provides additional training opportunities so that staff have the 
skills and knowledge needed to support the well being and development of children with diverse support needs. Additional 
support programs for families include but are not limited to: support and educational programs for parents (including specific 
programs for young parents), family and individual wellness programs, special needs information and resources, addictions 
awareness and counselling support, food security programs, grief and loss counselling, and Fetal Alcohol Spectrum (FAS) 
support. 
 
Beacon also partners with the Queen Alexandra Centre and the Victoria Native Friendship Centre to provided additional 
support for children and families when needed.   
 
Beacon won a 2018 Child Care Award of Excellence for Leadership in inclusive childcare practices (press release included 
as attachment). 

Will the proposed facility provide child care programming to low-income families? Yes No Don't know

Describe the services, programming, staff training, and/or community partnerships provided to support low-income families served by your 
program.

Being a multifaceted community association Beacon offers many readily available programs and supports for low income 
families. These programs include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
•  in home assessments with family development counsellors to support families in budgeting, nutrition, life skills and routine 
supports 
•   food security programs for families (Beacon is a founding and long standing member of the Coalition of Neighborhood 
Houses) 
•   snacks and lunch provided in licensed childcare programs.  Beacon also offers lunch, snacks and dinners in a number of 
other Beacon support programs for families.  
•   Beacon’s Young Parent Program provides assistance with supplies including diapers, transportation support, and take 
home meals. 
•   Other supports for families as needed including appliances, furniture and housing support. 
 

Will the proposed facility provide child care programming to families new to Canada? Yes No Don't Know

Describe the services, programming, staff training, and/or community partnerships provided to support children/families new to Canada 
served by your program.

The program will welcome all families within the community with other cultural heritage and knowing, including immigrants 
and those from refugee communities. In addition to the programs described above for support needs of children and supports 
for low income families, the following programs also support children/families new to Canada: 
  
•  Beacon’s Peninsula Best Babies programs creates an opportunity for connection through culture and shared food and 
seems to be the connecting point for new families to other beacon programs.  All Beacon programs are welcoming to new 
families 
•  Beacon also partners with the Intercultural Association of Greater Victoria and with this partnership has provided staff 
training on diversity in the work place.  

Will the proposed facility provide child care programming to children of young parents (25 years and under)? Yes No Don't Know

Describe the services, programming, staff training, and/or community partnerships provided to support children/families of young parents 
served by your program.

Through a long-standing partnership with SD63 (Saanich), Beacon offers a number of program supports for young parents 
including the Young Parent Program supporting young parents working towards graduation, and various educational and 
other support programs for young parents. Educational programs at Beacon’s Peninsula Early Years Centre (close to the 
proposed childcare facility) includes a variety of subjects on parenting and life skills and are offered throughout the year. 
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Beacon’s young parent program also provides assistance with supplies including diapers, transportation support, and take 
home meals.  As needed, Beacon also provides other supports for young parents as described in this application for low 
income families and for children with additional support needs. 

Will the proposed facility provide child care programming welcoming to Black and other children and 
families of colour?

Yes No Don't Know

Describe the services, programming, staff training, and/or community partnerships provided to ensure the program is welcoming to Black 
and other children and families of colour served by your program.

The program will welcome all families within the community, including Black and other children and families of colour. 
 
Beacon continues to offer open and inclusive programming for all families. Staff training and education includes antiracism 
awareness and strategies for supporting particular issues that families may face due to culture and race. Beacon recruits 
staff in order to create diversity in staffing at every level. The many programs and supports delivered by Beacon (as 
described in this application) supports all families in need including children and families of colour. 

Will the proposed facility provide programming to French-speaking children and families? Yes No Don't Know

Describe the services, programming, staff training, and/or community partnerships provided to support French-speaking children and families 
served by your program.

The program welcomes all families within the community, including those with other cultural heritage and knowing. All 
families in need will receive the program supports outlined in this application; however, the program will not provide programs 
specific only to French-speaking children and families.

It is expected that most child care programs will serve all children and families. However, the Province recognizes some programs will tailor 
their child care programming to meet the needs of a specific/particular population group(s). 

Is your program tailored to meet the needs of a specific population group(s)? Yes No

If yes, which of the following apply:

Indigenous-led program providing specific Indigenous child care programming

Program serving children with specialized support needs (e.g. Deaf and hard of hearing child care program)

Program that specializes in serving families new to Canada

Designated Young Parent Program

French immersion or Francophone child care program

If a tailored program is indicated above, please provide a brief description of the program, including information on any of the services, 
programming, staff training, facility policies, and community partnerships.

Programming is specifically tailored to support Indigenous Education, students with diverse support needs, and young 
parents (through a Designated Young Parent Programs). A description of these programs is included above in the 
descriptions of priority populations served. 

7.0 Project Schedule
List the key dates of the main activities of your project. The Ministry may prioritize Applicants that are able to demonstrate their ability to 
begin construction within 6 months of approval of funding. 
 
Please note: After your application is submitted, should there be any changes to these dates, you must notify the Ministry immediately.

Activity Start Date Completion Date

Project Start Date April 2022

Project Design March 2019 June 2022

Site Development June 2022 August 2022

Construction May 2022 Dec 2022

Interior Finishing May 2022 Dec 2022

Electrical May 2022 Dec 2022

Plumbing May 2022 Dec 2022
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Activity Start Date Completion Date

Equipment May 2022 Dec 2022

Licensing May 2022 Dec 2022

Furnishings July 2022 Dec 2022

Permits May 2022 Dec 2022

Other (please specify)

Opening Date Jan 2023

Project Completion Jan 2023

7.1 Project Schedule Risks

Please identify any risks to the schedule of your project. For each risk identified, a mitigation strategy must be included. 
Budget specific risks should be addressed in Section 8.2.

Activity Identified Risks Mitigation Strategies

Project Start Date Funding and rezoning

Project Design
Rezoning 

Extensive community consultation prior to 
rezoning application. 
 
The rezoning application has commenced and 
we are consulting with the municipality on 
requirements prior to funding confirmation. 
 
Budget contingency available, if necessary, for 
additional municipal requirements.

Site Development Unforeseen Conditions Budget Contingency

Construction (e.g. electrical, 
plumbing)

Cost escalation
Budget Contingency and fixed price modular 
construction

Equipment & furnishings Supply shortages Advanced procurement

Operator & staffing Recruitment Operator recruitment plan

Licensing Low risk

Permits Rezoning process

Extensive community consultation prior to 
rezoning application. 
 
The rezoning application has commenced and 
we are consulting with the municipality on 
requirements prior to funding confirmation. 
 
Budget contingency available, if necessary, for 
additional municipal requirements.

Opening Date Rezoning process

Extensive community consultation prior to 
rezoning application. 
 
The rezoning application has commenced and 
we are consulting with the municipality on 
requirements prior to funding confirmation. 
 
Budget contingency available, if necessary, for 
additional municipal requirements.

Other:

Project Completion
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8.0 Estimated Project Costs
Complete the following table with a summary of the proposed Project Costs and a breakdown of the total costs associated with the child care 
build, if different (when part of a larger project). Refer to Table 2 (Contribution Percentages and Funding Award Commitment by Applicant 
Type) in Section 4.1 of the Funding Guidelines for information on Maximum Provincial Funding Amounts and Required Organization 
Contribution percentages.

Important: In addition to this summary, you must attach a complete Project Budget with a breakdown of all associated costs (for school 
districts this may be in the form of a “Order of Magnitude” cost estimate). Please refer to the list of mandatory supporting documentation by 
applicant type provided in Table 3 (Mandatory Supporting Documentation Based on Applicant Type) of the Funding Guidelines.

Two detailed quotes for every item included in the total Project Costs are required to be attached with the Application (this requirement only 
applies to Not-for-Profit Organizations (societies), Child Development Centres and Indigenous Not-for-Profit Organizations (societies). A 
detailed quote means all components of the quote are listed. Refer to Appendix B of the Guidelines for more information about quote 
requirements.

8.1 Estimated Project Costs Summary

Cost

Total Proposed Project Costs for the build  
(as supported by quotes submitted)

$3,000,000.00

Total Proposed Childcare Build Costs  
(if different than above, when part of a larger project) 

Total Required Organization Contribution (if applicable)

Other Funding/Contribution Sources (specify)

(provide proof of all funding contributions towards the project) 

+

-

Funding Requested from the Province $3,000,000.00

Provincial Cost per Space

Funding Requested from the 
Province

Total Number of New Spaces to 
be Created

Provincial Cost per Space

$3,000,000.00 84 $35,714.29

If the project’s provincial cost per space exceeds $40,000 per space, please provide a rationale below.

N/A

By selecting this box, I am confirming that I have submitted a complete project budget with a breakdown of all associated costs.

By selecting this box, I am confirming that I have submitted 2 detailed quotes for each budget item.

8.2 Project Budget Risks
For each risk to the project budget identified, a mitigation strategy must be included below, including how cost escalations will be addressed.

Have you identified a contingency fund? Yes No

If yes, please describe:

There is project contingency of $145,302, which represents 15% of project costs excluding the cost of the modular building 
which will be fixed price. The budget estimate for the modular building also reflects cost escalation now until the order date.
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Have you identified additional funding sources to support this project? Yes No

If yes, please describe:

An additional funding source is not required to support this project, as the project estimates are conservative and there is 
sufficient contingency reserve. SD63(Saanich) has already completed 3 projects through the Childcare BC New Spaces 
Fund for a final cost less than the approved funding.

What is your risk mitigation approach if your project experiences cost escalations?

At the point when the funding agreement is signed, we will enter into a fixed price contract for construction, delivery and 
installation of the modular building. The risk of cost escalation is reduced to a low level by the inclusion of project contingency 
in the budget. If cost escalation were to increase in excess of available contingency, there are also opportunities to reduce 
some scope without impact to the program or to find alternative funding sources.

9.0 Application Declaration
This section must be reviewed and completed by the Applicant and, in the case of an Applicant that is a public body or other organization 
type referenced in Section 1 of this Application, this section must be reviewed and completed by the authorized representative/signatory on 
behalf of that public body or organization.

I, the Applicant, by checking the “I confirm and agree” checkbox below, declare and represent to the Ministry that:

 1. I am the Applicant or the authorized representative/signing authority of the Applicant, in which case I have the authority to submit 
this Application and related information and materials on behalf of the Applicant; 

 2. I understand and commit to supporting the proposed Project; 
 3. I have reviewed and understand the Childcare BC New Spaces Funding Guidelines (“Guidelines”) and the New Spaces Program 

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and I understand the requirements of this Program. I accept and agree to commit to the 
process set out in the Terms and Conditions in Appendix A of the Guidelines; 

 4. All information provided in this Application or otherwise in connection with this Application is true and complete. I have not knowingly 
withheld any information that is relevant to the Ministry’s consideration of this Application. I understand that providing false or 
misleading information in connection with this Application for funding under this Program could result in certain penalties or 
repayment obligations, or both, under the Child Care BC Act or the New Spaces Funding Agreement;  

 5. As between the Ministry and the Applicant (including any of its directors and officers), no known conflict of interest exists in 
connection with this Application for New Spaces funding or the proposed Project; and 

 6. In the case of an Applicant that is a public body or organization, all necessary authorizations and approvals are in place to ensure 
that the Applicant has the power and authority to apply for the New Spaces Funding and, if selected to receive funding, to enter into 
and comply with the obligations set out in a New Spaces Funding Agreement.  

I confirm and agree

Submit your completed application with all mandatory supporting documentation by email to MCF.CCCF@gov.bc.ca
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